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International Entertainment Corporation

Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Dear Fellow Shareholders,

I 'am pleased to take this opportunity to present the annual report of
International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2020.

The principal activities of the Group are hotel operations, leasing of
properties equipped with entertainment equipment and live poker events
operations.

The Group's revenue with continuing operations for the year ended 30
June 2020 was approximately HK$227.0 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 39.6%, as compared with approximately HK$376.0 million in
the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. Both the revenue from the leasing
of properties and the hotel operations for the year decreased as compared
with the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. The Group recorded a loss of
approximately HK$305.3 million for the year ended 30 June 2020 as
compared with a loss of approximately HK$93.3 million for the fifteen
months ended 30 June 2019 for continuing and discontinued operations,
which represented an increase of approximately 227.2%. The increase in
loss was mainly attributable to the fair value loss of the investment
properties and the decrease in the leasing income during the year, which
were affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and the lockdown policy in
Manila.

Net cash generated from operating activities of the Group for the year
under review was approximately HK$10.9 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 70.6%, as compared with approximately HK$37.1 million
for the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. Net assets attributable to the
owners of the Company as at 30 June 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$1,788.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately 11.6%, as
compared with approximately HK$2,023.3 million as at 30 June 2019.

As always, the Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices and will continue to enhance the risk
management and internal control systems to comply with the statutory
and regulatory requirements to maximise the values of the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”).

The Group will continue to focus on its existing business operations and

investments in the Philippines riding on business environment to strive for
exploring potential business opportunities.
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The tourism industry in the Philippines is expected to grow after COVID-19
pandemic, with higher disposable incomes, increasingly discerning market
demographic and other positive factors have driven the booming
development of the Philippines. Marina Square Properties, Inc. ("MSPI"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in the Philippines, had
submitted an application to Philippine Amusement and Gaming
Corporation (“PAGCOR") for a provisional license in order to expand and
upgrade the current hotel premises, facilities and services by the
establishment and operation of a casino and the development of an
integrated resort in the Philippines. MSPI had received a conditionally
approved letter issued by PAGCOR, and MSPI will further negotiate for the
terms of the provisional license agreement to be entered into between
PAGCOR and MSPIin relation to the grant of the provisional license.

Looking forward, we strive to explore more opportunities of high potential
to create synergies among businesses and support the long-term growth
of the Group.

In conclusion, I would like to express my sincerest gratitude to my fellow
directors of the Company, the management team and the employees of
the Group for their relentless commitment, efforts and creative ideas
during the year. | would also like to take this opportunity to thank our
Shareholders, customers and business partners for their continued support.

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 September 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEwmEDN

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REGARDING
THE QUALIFIED OPINION

The auditor of the Company (the “Auditor”) has expressed a qualified
opinion (the “Qualified Opinion”) on the discontinued operation. Set out
below are the supplementary information regarding the aforesaid qualified
opinion:

1. Background for the discontinued operation

Detailed information is set out in note 13 and note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

2. Management’s view on the audit qualification

The management of the Company has given careful consideration
to the Qualified Opinion and the basis therefor and has had ongoing
discussions with Auditor when preparing the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020.

The management understands that the issue of the Qualified
Opinion was caused by the delay in the audit work of the Disposal
Group as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic in UK and also the
subsidiaries of the Disposal Group went into administration and
administrators (the "Administrators”) were appointed. The Company
and the Auditor have urged the Administrators to provide the
financial information for the audit. However, the Administrators are
in the process of selling the business and assets of the Disposal
Group, and they are unable to assist the Auditor to perform the
audit. As a result, the Auditor could not perform its audit work on the
Disposal Group and this is beyond our management control. As the
Auditor could not obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence
and materials to audit the line items relevant to the Disposal Group
on the Group's 2020 consolidated financial statements, the Auditor
issued the Qualified Opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020.

With respect to the type of audit opinion issued by the Auditor,
based on the foregoing, the management acknowledged and
agreed with the audit opinion issued based on their professional and
independent assessment.
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International Entertainment Corporation
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Management Discussion and Analysis

View of the Audit Committee and management’s
position

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
confirmed that it had independently reviewed and agreed with the
management’s position concerning the Qualified Opinion for
reasons stated in paragraph headed “Management’s view on the
audit qualification” above.

The Audit Committee convened a meeting on 11 September 2020,
in which it has considered the explanation made by the Auditor and
the management with respect to the audit work for the Disposal
Group. It was acknowledged by the Audit Committee that there
were practical difficulties to the audit work for reasons stated above,
and that the relevant audit procedures required to be performed by
the Auditor were in fact affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and the
subsequent administration for the subsidiaries of the Disposal Group.

On the basis of the above, the Audit Committee does not dispute
the Qualified Opinion issued on the discontinued operation for the
year ended 30 June 2020.

Action plan to address the audit qualification

The Company had various discussions with the Auditor on the
reasons for issuing the Qualified Opinion, and on the sufficiency of
audit evidence and the audit procedures required to be performed
in order to remove the Qualified Opinion.

The Company will use its best endeavours to negotiate with the
Administrators in order to complete the Disposal Group audit work.
The Company is also liaising with the Auditor with respect to the
audit issue. The Company will comply with all relevant requirements,
and where necessary, make further announcement(s) in accordance
with the Listing Rules as and when appropriate.

Impact and removal of the audit qualification

As disclosed in Independent Auditor’s Report, the audit qualification
only related to the discontinued operation for the current year 2020.
As the Disposal Group would no longer be consolidated in the
financial statements of the Group, the issues which gave rise to the
Qualified Opinion would likely, at the maximum, only continue to
impact the Group's financial statements for the year ending 30 June
2021 for the qualification on the comparative figures.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEwmEDN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Continuing operations

As the Company changed its financial year end date from 31 March to 30
June in 2019, the financial information of the Company herein presented is
for the year ended 30 June 2020, with comparatives based on those for the
fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. The Group's revenue for the year
ended 30 June 2020 was approximately HK$227.0 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 39.6%, as compared with approximately
HK$376.0 million in the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. Both the
revenue from the leasing of properties and the hotel operations for the
year decreased as compared with the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019.
The Group reported a gross profit of approximately HK$148.5 million for
the year under review, representing a decrease of approximately 45.0%, as
compared with approximately HK$270.0 million in the fifteen months
ended 30 June 2019. Gross profit margin for the year ended 30 June 2020
was approximately 65.4%, representing a decrease of approximately 6.4%,
as compared to gross profit margin of approximately 71.8% for the fifteen
months ended 30 June 2019. The decrease in gross profit margin for the
year was mainly due to drop of room rate of hotel operations and the
decrease of leasing income for the year.

Other income of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020 was
approximately HK$16.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately
38.9%, as compared with approximately HK$26.5 million in the fifteen
months ended 30 June 2019.

The Group recorded a gain of approximately HK$29.1 million on change in
fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss for the year
ended 30 June 2020, while a loss on change in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$51.8 million was
recognised for the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. The Group also
recorded a gain of approximately HK$13.2 million on change in fair value of
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss for the year ended 30
June 2020.

Other losses of the Group mainly represented the net foreign exchange
gain or loss. The Group recorded a net foreign exchange loss of
approximately HKS$13.8 million for the year ended 30 June 2020, while a net
foreign exchange loss of approximately HK$8.8 million was recorded in the
fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. For the year ended 30 June 2020, the
other losses also included the written-off of property, plant and equipment
of approximately HK$0.4 million and written-off of other receivables of
approximately HK$2.7 million.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and marketing expenses and general and administrative expenses
of the Group decreased by approximately 35.4% to approximately
HK$126.9 million for the year ended 30 June 2020 from approximately
HK$196.5 million in the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. Included in
these expenses for the year ended 30 June 2020, approximately 40.4% and
11.0% were the staff costs and the utilities expenses respectively. The staff
costs for the year ended 30 June 2020 was approximately HK$51.3 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 22.4%, as compared with
approximately HK$66.1 million in the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019.
The utilities expenses for the year ended 30 June 2020 was approximately
HKS$13.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately 43.5%, as
compared with approximately HK$24.6 million in the fifteen months ended
30 June 2019.

Finance costs of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020 was
approximately HK$32.5 million, representing an increase of approximately
48.5% as compared with approximately HK$21.9 million in the fifteen
months ended 30 June 2019. The finance costs included the interest on
promissory note, the bank loan interest, interest on other borrowings, lease
liabilities and convertible bond.

The Group recorded income tax credit of approximately HKS$6.5 million for
the year ended 30 June 2020, while income tax expenses of approximately
HKS$14.2 million was recognised in the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019.
Such turnaround from income tax expenses to income tax credit was
mainly due to release of deferred tax liabilities during the year ended 30
June 2020.

The loss for the period from discontinued operation was approximately
HK$70.9 million, which included the gain on disposal of subsidiaries of
approximately HK$128.0 million.

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$305.3 million for the year
ended 30 June 2020 as compared with a loss of approximately HK$93.3
million for the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019 for continuing and
discontinued operations, which represented an increase of approximately
227.2%. The increase in loss was mainly attributable to the fair value loss of
the investment properties and the decrease in the leasing income during
the year, which were affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and the
lockdown policy in Manila.

Loss per share for the year ended 30 June 2020 amounted to
approximately 20.42 HK cents, as compared with loss per share of
approximately 5.66 HK cents for the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Group are hotel operations, leasing of
properties equipped with entertainment equipment and live poker events
operations.

Continuing operations

1.

10

Leasing of properties

The revenue derived from the leasing of properties represents the
rental income from the premises of the Group leased to PAGCOR.
The monthly rental income is based on an agreed percentage of net
gaming revenue generated from the local gaming area operated by
PAGCOR as lessee of the Group's premises or a fixed rental amount,
whichever is higher.

The revenue derived from the leasing of properties for the year
ended 30 June 2020 was approximately HK$140.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 38.7%, as compared with
approximately HK$229.5 million in the fifteen months ended 30 June
2019. The decrease was mainly due to the closure of Group's
property since mid-March 2020. It contributed approximately 62.0%
of the Group's revenue from continuing operations during the year
under review while it contributed approximately 61.0% of the
Group's revenue from continuing operations in the fifteen months
ended 30 June 2019.

Hotel operations

The revenue derived from the hotel operations mainly includes
room revenue, revenue from food and beverages and other hotel
service income. The hotel of the Group is located in Manila City
which is a tourist spot with churches and historical sites as well as
various night spots catered for tourists and is one of the major tourist
destinations in the Philippines.

The revenue derived from the hotel operations for the year ended 30
June 2020 was approximately HK$82.0 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 42.0%, as compared with approximately
HK$141.3 million in the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019.

During the year under review, included in the revenue derived from
the hotel operations, approximately 69.1% of the revenue was
contributed by room revenue while it was approximately 63.8% in
the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. The room revenue for the
year ended 30 June 2020 was approximately HK$56.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 37.1%, as compared with
approximately HK$90.1 million in the fifteen months ended 30 June
2019. The decrease was mainly due to drop of room rate of hotel
operation.

Annual Report £#% 2019/20

EH IR
AEEZ EBEBHREYEE  HRRBRER
B2MERGERSERTED -

BEKEER
1. HEY*E

REREMEIRATIEERNEE 2 WET
PAGCORZ M2 A - & AN WA TIIE
PAGCOR(FRNEEWEATAN) T E 2 & i
BRSHASEZ R AFEHTE D Lk E
EHESEB(UARSEAE)FHE -

HE-_ZT-ZTHFA=1+HILEE AL
TR E 2 WA %5 140,700,000 8 7T * BEE
ZE-NFARAZtTHIE+TRBEABEEL
229,500,000 78 TTIR A 47 38.7% © A EZEHR
NEEMEG T -_TF = AP aEER -
REBFE « Pl A R AREEREFEL
BERZIMAL620% MEE T N4
NAZtTHIETREABE - ElR AL
SEREFBELCEER 2WALI61.0%

& HE

KEKEBEZRATEBREREA &
ERU A Ko EAD B JE RIS U - R B 2B TE
NRBENTA - ESIKRERH  BER
JESRIEAUE RS - A % B ] R EHE 2 B
RS - BIFRFEP —(EAXZZRER -

BE_Z-_TFEA=1TBHILFE XEK
BB E 2 WA 49 582,000000/8 T WEZE
ZE-NAFARAA=ZtHIE+TREABBL
141,300,000 3 TTIR A #9 42.0% ©

REBFEEN - RALERE 2 MAEF L
69.1% BERWA - MEBKAREBEEZE=F
—NEXNA=THIE+REABEBNLL
638% c HE—ZE-_EFNA=+tHILFE
Z B A% 5567000008 7T © BEE —
E—hAhFEXRNAZF+THLE+RABEABHMBEY
90,100,000 TR L #937.1% - BB AL EE
BRRBIEEEEE T -



B IREEAR A E

International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

Impairment loss of non-current assets

During the year, we concluded that the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment amounted to approximately HK$8,709,000 and
right-of-use assets amounted to approximately HK$666,000 are
required to be impaired respectively. The impairment was
recognised as the COVID-19 pandemic’s effects became widespread
and tourist activities was restricted in the Philippines until the date of
this report. The independent valuation expert had included the
possible effect of COVID-19 in the calculation of recoverable amount
of the Hotel's non-current assets and therefore arrived at a lower
recoverable amount.

3.  Live poker events operations

The revenue derived from the live poker events operations
represents the live event income from the sponsorship and the
entrance fee.

The revenue derived from the live poker events operations for the
year ended 30 June 2020 was approximately HK$4.2 million. It
contributed approximately 1.9% of the Group’s total revenue during
the year under review.

Discontinued operation

The Group had ceased its football club operations since 29 May 2020 due
to the disposal of subsidiaries.

The revenue derived from the football club operations represents
broadcasting income, commercial income and matchday income. The
broadcasting income represents central distributions of broadcasting
revenue from the English Football League (“EFL") and solidarity payment
from the Premier League. The commercial income represents the
sponsorship, and other commercial income such as sales of food and
beverages, stadium hiring income and hospitality sales. The matchday
income represents the ticket income from EFL Championship competitions
and other cups competitions.

The revenue derived from the football club operations for the year ended
30 June 2020 was approximately HK$125.1 million. The loss for the period
from discontinued operation was approximately HK$70.9 million, which
included the gain on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately HK$128.0
million.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

The COVID-19 pandemic since early 2020 has impacted all company over
the world. The COVID-19 pandemic has caused the decrease in both the
hotel revenue and leasing income in the Philippines. The gradual easing of
the COVID-19 pandemic situation in Manila has led to the recovery of the
hotel rooms booking and the casino located in the Hotel would be
expected to reopen. The Group will continue to focus on its existing
business operations and investments in the Philippines riding on business
environment to strive for exploring potential business opportunities.

The tourism industry in the Philippines is expected to grow after COVID-19
pandemic, with higher disposable incomes, increasingly discerning market
demographic and other positive factors have driven the booming
development of the Philippines. MSPI had submitted an application to
PAGCOR for a provisional license in order to expand and upgrade the
current hotel premises, facilities and services by the establishment and
operation of a casino and the development of an integrated resort in the
Philippines. MSPI had received a conditionally approved letter issued by
PAGCOR, and MSPI will further negotiate for the terms of the provisional
license agreement to be entered into between PAGCOR and MSPI in
relation to the grant of the provisional license.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 June 2020, the Group’s net current assets amounted to
approximately HK$682.3 million (as at 30 June 2019: HK$388.4 million).
Current assets amounted to approximately HK$771.0 million (as at 30 June
2019: HK$546.6 million), of which approximately HK$623.2 million (as at 30
June 2019: HK$242.3 million) was bank balances and cash, approximately
HKS7.1 million (as at 30 June 2019: HK$26.5 million) was trade receivables,
approximately HK$38.2 million (as at 30 June 2019: HK$82.7 million) was
other receivables, deposits and prepayments, approximately HK$1.8 million
(as at 30 June 2019: HK$2.9 million) was inventories, approximately HK$93.4
million (as at 30 June 2019: HK$191.4 million) was financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, approximately HK$4.1 million (as at 30 June
2019: HK$0.9 million) was contract assets, and approximately HK$3.2 million
(as at 30 June 2019: nil) was amounts due from associates.
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As at 30 June 2020, the Group had current liabilities amounted to
approximately HK$88.7 million (as at 30 June 2019: HK$158.2 million), of
which approximately HK$3.5 million (as at 30 June 2019: HK$20.5 million)
was trade payables, approximately HK$62.0 million (as at 30 June 2019:
HKS$121.6 million) was other payables and accrued charges, approximately
HKS$1.0 million (as at 30 June 2019: HK$11.3 million) was contract liabilities,
approximately HK$19.5 million (as at 30 June 2019: HK$4.8 million) was
bank borrowings, and approximately HK$2.8 million (as at 30 June 2019: nil)
was lease liabilities.

The bank balances and cash of the Group as at 30 June 2020 was mainly
denominated in Philippine Peso (“Peso”), Hong Kong Dollars ("HKS") and
United States Dollars (“USD").

During the year ended 31 March 2017, Fortune Growth Overseas Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, completed the acquisition of
the remaining 49% equity interest in Maxprofit International Limited at a
consideration of HK$1,138.0 million, of which HK$788.0 million was settled
by cash and HK$350.0 million was settled by way of the issuance of a
promissory note (the “Promissory Note”) in the principal amount of
HK$350.0 million by Fortune Growth Overseas Limited to Cross-Growth Co,,
Ltd. (the “Holder"). Details of the acquisition are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 25 July 2016 and the circular of the
Company dated 25 August 2016. The Promissory Note, which was issued
on 3 October 2016, carries interest at the fixed rate of 4% per annum and
shall become due and payable in full on the business day immediately
preceding the fifth anniversary of its issue date and is unsecured and
guaranteed by the Company. On 5 July 2019, the Holder transferred the
Promissory Note to another independent third party of the Company,
Oxford East Limited, through a deed of transfer. The transfer has no impact
to the Company as term of note remains unchanged. As at 30 June 2020,
the carrying value of the Promissory Note was approximately HK$345.9
million (as at 30 June 2019: HK$342.8 million).

Net cash generated from operating activities of the Group for the year
under review was approximately HK$10.9 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 70.6%, as compared with approximately HK$37.1 million
for the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. Net assets attributable to the
owners of the Company as at 30 June 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$1,788.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately 11.6%, as
compared with approximately HK$2,023.3 million as at 30 June 2019.
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On 27 July 2017, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a
placing agent (the “Placing Agreement”). The completion of the placing
took place on 10 August 2017. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Placing Agreement, an aggregate of 190,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$1.00 each as placing shares were successfully placed by
the placing agent at the placing price of HK$1.90 per placing share. Further
details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 27 July
2017 and 10 August 2017. The net proceeds from the placing, after
deducting the placing commission and other related expenses payable by
the Company, were approximately HK$358.50 million. The net proceeds
from the placing were intended to be used as to (i) approximately
HKS$150.0 million for the renovation of a hotel of the Group in Manila City
(the "Hotel"); (i) approximately HK$100.0 million for the development of
the parcels of land adjacent to the Hotel (the “New Hotel Land"), including
but not limited to the construction of a carpark and amenities of the Hotel,
and the provision of a facility to an independent third party for the
acquisition of the New Hotel Land; (iii) approximately HK$70.0 million for
the potential acquisition of, including but not limited to, lands in the
Philippines for the construction of hotel(s) and/or casino(s); and (iv) the
remaining proceeds for the general working capital of the Group. Set forth
below is a summary of the utilization of the net proceeds:

RZZE—+tFtA=-+tH ARAEHEERIE
U ERE(RERE] BERZZE—+F
NA+BTK o BRIFEE Bk 2GR R - B
EREDIREESE SR ERM1.90B TR
& & ££190,000,000 f% A8 A 7] B A% E{E 1.0078 7T 2
TERIEALERD - E—FTHBHANARQRH
AT —+tHF+LtATtRARZZ—+tFNA
+HZAE - EBREMSFIBFE(NRESHE X
EMAREEIEBR%) 43585000008 7T °
IR #5148 Be 5 P 1S 3R I8 5 88 H AR (1) £9150,000,000 78
TAREEAERESENmRZ —BEE (B
J& 1) (i) #7100,000,000 7% 7T A AR RTBEE 2
R ([FE/EHER ) (BIRETR R EEEL N
BI5 RAEFERHE) LA K AU 30 5 Ho SR R 8 S 58
ZAIRMERE ¢ (ii) #9 70,000,000 78 7T B A AT pE U R
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Amount of Balance of
the netproceeds  the net proceeds
Intended use of utilised as at unutilised as at
the net proceeds 30 June 2020 30 June 2020
R-B-2E R-B-%F
AHA=1H A~HA=+H
28R REA
P8R P8R JREE S
FERERR FeH R
(HKS million) (HKS million) (HKS million)
(AEAET) (RB#ET) (RBET)
Renovation of the Hotel (Note 1) BIERE (M) 1500 1182 318
Development of the New Hotel Land, including B3 Z#T B & H 52 (B IEE R 7
but not limited to the construction of EERENEES REFRG)
a carpark and amenities of the Hotel, R ABWEBE R B L
and the provision of a facility to B=HRERE (Hi2)
an independent third party for
the acquisition of the New Hotel Land (Note 2) 100.0 526 474
Potential acquisition (the "Potential Acquisition”) F] BEULEE (BIEB TR FFEE
of, including but not limited to, lands in M BREE KSR eLis
the Philippines for the construction of ([Argelie =18 ) (HraE3)
hotel(s) and/or casino(s) (Note 3) 70.0 - 70.0
General working capital of the Group rEEN—REEES 385 385 -
Total st 3585 2093 1492
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Notes:

1. The renovation of the Hotel is almost completed during the year ended 30 June
2020.

2. The HKS$52.6 million utilised comprised HK$51.9 million loan to Harbor View
Properties and Holdings, Inc. for the acquisition of the New Hotel Land and HKS$0.7
million for the payment of the design and consultancy services fees for the
development of the New Hotel Land. Priority will be given to the development of
the new lands to be acquired in the Potential Acquisition before the development
of the New Hotel Land. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Potential Acquisition
is expected to be completed in the financial year ending 30 June 2022. It is
expected that in addition to the balance of the net proceeds of approximately
HK$47.4 million allocated, further financial resources are required for the
development of the New Hotel Land. The time for commencement of the
development of the New Hotel Land and use of the remaining net proceeds
allocated for the development of the New Hotel Land will depend on the internal
and external financial resources available to the Group and commencement of the
development of the new lands to be acquired.

3. It is expected that the HK$70 million allocated for the Potential Acquisition will be
utilised in the financial year ending 30 June 2022.

The gearing ratio, measured in terms of the carrying values of total
borrowings divided by total assets, was approximately 18.3% (as at 30 June
2019: 15.0%).

The Group financed its operations including but not limited to internally
generated cash flows and the issuance of the Promissory Note.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING PERIOD
Impact of COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic since early 2020 has brought about additional
uncertainties in the Group’s operating environment and has impacted the
Group's operations and financial position. As far as the Group's businesses
are concerned, the COVID-19 pandemic has caused the decrease in both
the hotel revenue and leasing income in the Philippines. The gradual
easing of the COVID-19 pandemic situation in Manila has led to the
recovery of the hotel rooms booking and the casino located in the Hotel
would be expected to reopen.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact from the COVID-19
pandemic on the Group’s businesses and has put in place various
contingency measures. These contingency measures included but not
limited to reassessing the demand and room rate of the Hotel, reassessing
the leasing income to be received by PAGCOR and improving the Group’s
cash management by expediting debtor settlements. The Group will keep
the contingency measures under review as the COVID-19 pandemic
situation evolves.
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Application of Provisional License

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 10 June 2020, MSPI
intends to apply for a provisional license (the “Provisional License”) from
PAGCOR in order to expand and upgrade the current hotel premises,
facilities and services by the establishment and operation of a casino and
the development of an integrated resort in the City of Manila, Philippines
(the “Integrated Resort”). On 22 June 2020, MSPI has submitted an
application to PAGCOR for the Provisional License. On 18 September 2020,
MSPI received a letter from PAGCOR informing that PAGCOR has
conditionally approved the issuance of the Provisional License to MSPI.
MSPI'and PAGCOR will further negotiate for the terms of the provisional
license agreement to be entered into between PAGCOR and MSPI in
relation to the grant of the Provisional License.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group continues to face significant risks and uncertainties from the
economic growth and the competition in the market that the Group
operates, and changes in economic, political and social conditions and
changes in the relevant laws and regulations in the places that the Group
operates.

The Group is also exposed to currency risk as the Group's assets and
liabilities are mainly denominated in HKS, USD, Peso and EURO and the
Group primarily earns its revenue and income in HKS$, USD and Peso while
the Group primarily incurs costs and expenses mainly in HKS and Peso.

In addition, uncertainties exist with regard to the tax disputes between
certain subsidiaries of the Company operating in the Philippines and the
Bureau of Internal Revenue in the Philippines.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Save as otherwise mentioned in this report, during the year ended 30 June
2020, there was no incidence of non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations of the places in which the Group operates that has a
significant impact on the business operations of the Group.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019, the bank loans are secured by the
Group's investment properties amounted to approximately HK$1,308
million and HK$1,510 million respectively.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

On 30 April 2019, Baltic Success Limited (“BSL"), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and two vendors, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement pursuant to which BSL agreed to acquire, and each
vendor agreed to sell 50% of equity interests at a consideration of
HK$26,500,000 and HK$26,500,000 respectively of Oriental-Invest Properties
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, which was settled by way of issue of the convertible bond (the
“Convertible Bond") by the Company to each vendor respectively. On 2 July
2019, BSL entered into a supplemental agreement with the vendors,
pursuant to which BSL and the vendors agreed to make certain
amendments to the sale and purchase agreement in respect of certain
administrative arrangement of completion. The completion took place on
5 July 2019. Upon completion, Oriental-Invest Properties Limited has
become an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Further
details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 30 April
2019, 2 July 2019 and 5 July 2019.

On 25 October 2019, IEC Investment Limited (“IEC Investment”) (formerly
known as “VMS Private Investment Partners VIII Limited”), a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a transfer agreement with
a purchaser, pursuant to which IEC Investment agreed to transfer and
assign, and the purchaser agreed to purchase the interest, being 49.9962%
of total capital commitment in the fund and represents half of IEC
Investment's interest in the fund, at the consideration of US$16.30 million.
All conditions precedent under the transfer agreement had been fulfilled
and the completion took place on 30 December 2019. Upon completion,
the Group holds 49.9962% of the total capital commitment of the fund.
Further details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 25
October 2019 and 30 December 2019.

On 14 February 2020, the Company and Next Leader Fund, L.P. (as the
purchaser) entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to sell and the purchaser has
conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of Newworth
Ventures Limited (“Newworth"), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Newworth is principally engaged in the operation of Wigan
Athletic Football Club which is a professional association football club
based in Wigan, Greater Manchester, England and a sports stadium, namely
the DW Stadium, with conference and other facilities. The total
consideration for the sale shares was GBP17,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$177,235,000).

All conditions precedent under the sale and purchase agreement had been
fulfilled and subsequently the completion took place on 29 May 2020.
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In accordance with the sale and purchase agreement, upon completion,
the Company (as the lender) and Wigan Athletic A.F.C. Limited (as the
borrower) entered into a loan agreement in an aggregate principal amount
of GBP24,357,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$243,737,000), and the
deed of guarantee was also entered into by the purchaser in favour of the
Company along with the loan agreement.

Immediately subsequent to the entering into of the loan agreement, the
pre-existing loan in the amount GBP24,357,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$243,737,000) has been repaid to the Company, and as a
result, Wigan Athletic AF.C. Limited is no longer indebted to the Company.

Further details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 18
November 2019, 13 December 2019, 14 February 2020, 2 March 2020, 20
March 2020, 17 April 2020, 5 May 2020 and 29 May 2020; and the circular of
the Company dated 8 May 2020.

MSPI intended to apply for the Provisional License from PAGCOR, the
regulatory and licensing authority for gaming and gambling in the
Philippines, in order to expand and upgrade the current hotel premises,
facilities and services by the establishment and operation of a casino and
the development of an integrated resort in the City of Manila, the
Philippines.

On 18 September 2020, MSPI received a letter from PAGCOR informing that
PAGCOR has conditionally approved the issuance of the Provisional License
to MSPI. MSPI and PAGCOR will further negotiate for the terms of the
provisional license agreement to be entered into between PAGCOR and
MSPI'in relation to the grant of the Provisional License.

The board (the "Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
believes that the development of the Integrated Resort will generate a
multitude of benefits, such as, payment of additional revenues to the
national government of the Philippines in the form of taxes, higher tourism
revenues upon substantial increase in tourist arrivals, and employment of
thousands of direct and indirect Filipino employees.

Further details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 10
June 2020, 18 June 2020, 22 June 2020 and 18 September 2020.

Save as disclosed, there was no acquisition or disposal of subsidiary and
associated company or significant investments of the Group, which would
have been required to be disclosed under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the year ended 30 June 2020.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group will continue to explore the market and identify any business
opportunities which may provide its growth and development potential,
enhance the profitability, and strive for better return to the Shareholders.
The Group will also continue to consider a renovation plan to improve the
properties of the Group as well as the facilities therein so as to attract more
guests and enhance their experience during their stays.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND ANY RELATED HEDGES

The functional currency of the Company is Peso, the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company’s major subsidiaries
operate. The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented
in HKS as the Directors consider that it is an appropriate presentation for a
company listed in Hong Kong and for the convenience of the Shareholders.

The Group's assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in HKS, USD, Peso
and EURO. The Group primarily earns its revenue and income in HKS, USD
and Peso while the Group primarily incurs costs and expenses mainly in
HKS and Peso. Therefore, the Group may be exposed to currency risk.

The Group has not implemented any foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group will monitor foreign currency
exposure for each business segment and review the needs of individual
geographical area, and consider appropriate hedging policy in future when
necessary.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total number of employees of the Group was 285 as at 30 June 2020
(as at 30 June 2019: 338). The staff costs for the year ended 30 June 2020
was approximately HK$51.3 million (for the fifteen months ended 30 June
2019: HK$66.1 million). The remuneration policy of the Company is
recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company. The
remuneration of the Directors and the employees of the Group is based on
the performance and experience of the individuals and is determined with
reference to the Group's performance, the remuneration benchmark in the
industry and the prevailing market conditions. In addition to the salaries,
the employees of the Group are entitled to benefits including medical,
insurance and retirement benefits. Besides, the Group regularly provides
internal and external training courses for the employees of the Group to
meet their needs.
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Biographical information of the Directors the senior management of the
Group as at the date of this annual report is set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley, aged 51, joined the Company as an executive
Director in May 2017 and was appointed as the chairman of the board of
Directors in June 2017. He is also the chairman of the executive committee
of the Company, the authorised representative of the Company and a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Dr. Choi possesses more
than 20 years of experience in financial service and merger and acquisition
projects. He is the chairman of Head & Shoulders Financial Group Limited.
Apart from working at senior positions for different financial groups in
Hong Kong, Dr. Choi has also served as a member of the senior
management of various listed companies in Hong Kong. He was an
executive director of Target Insurance (Holdings) Limited (a company listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 6161) from
September 2014 to January 2019, and was an executive director and the
chairman of Daging Dairy Holdings Limited (now known as “Longhui
International Holdings Limited”) (a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1007) from January 2016 to July 2018 and
from February 2016 to July 2018 respectively. Dr. Choi was also an
independent director of Guanghe Landscape Culture Communication Co.,
Ltd, Shanxi (LUl 8B ILIZK AL BRI 9 PR A R)) (stock code: 600234)
from July 2016 to September 2016, the shares of which are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. Dr. Choi obtained a bachelor’s degree of
business administration (Magna Cum Laude) from Wichita State University
in 1995 and a master's degree of science from the University of lllinois at
Urbana Champaign in 1996, both of which are in the United States of
America. He has also obtained a doctoral degree of business administration
from the City University of Hong Kong in 2013.

Dr. Choi is the sole shareholder and the sole director of Head and Shoulders
Direct Investment Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, which in turn is the sole shareholder of
Brighten Path Limited, the controlling Shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules). Dr. Choi is deemed, by virtue of his interest in Brighten Path Limited,
to be interested in 764,223,268 shares of the Company (the “Shares”) under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), representing approximately 55.82% of the issued share capital of the
Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Ho Wong Meng, aged 48, joined the Company in September 2020,
and is an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company. He is also a member of the executive committee and the
nomination committee of the Company, and a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ho possesses more than 20 years of
extensive experience and exceptional expertise in the gaming and
hospitality industry, mainly with the Genting Group. He also has a vast
knowledge and experience in the establishment and operation of casinos
and integrated resorts throughout the industry. Mr. Ho specialises in and
has deep understanding of the Asian gaming and hospitality industries. He
is a Certified Public Accountant who previously received intensive training
at KPMG Peat Marwick Malaysia. Mr. Ho is the executive chairman and
director of Frontier Capital Group Limited, which was previously listed on
the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX code: FCG).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lu Gloria Yi, aged 50, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive Director in May 2017. She is also the chairman of the nomination
committee, and a member of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee of the Company. Ms. Lu has over 20 years of experience in
investment banking, capital market and risk management. She was the
head of equities of China Renaissance Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
("China Renaissance”) between 2014 and 2016 and was responsible for
equity research, sales and trading, distribution and operation of both Hong
Kong and the United States of America equity markets. Prior to joining
China Renaissance, she was a deputy chief executive officer of China Life
Franklin Asset Management Co., Limited and was responsible for its
investment, research, product development, marketing and distribution as
well as administrative duties. She also worked for Blackrock Asset
Management North Asia Limited and Deutsche Securities Asia Limited in
her professional career. She was an executive director of Global Digital
Creations Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8271) from September 2007 to
September 2009. She obtained her bachelor’s degree in commerce from
the University of Toronto in 1994. She is a charterholder of Chartered
Financial Analyst and currently a responsible officer of Parantoux Capital
Limited for type 9 regulated activity (asset management) registered with
the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene, aged 63, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in May 2017. He is also the chairman
of the audit committee, and a member of the nomination committee and
the remuneration committee of the Company. He holds a Master's Degree
in Business Administration and is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 20 years of experience in the
finance and banking industry and acts or/and acted as director of a number
of private and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Ha is the director of a
certified public accountants corporate practice in Hong Kong. He is
currently an independent non-executive director of China Touyun Tech
Group Limited (stock code: 1332) and Planetree International Development
Limited (stock code: 613). He also served as an independent non-executive
director of Longhui International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1007) from
January 2016 to August 2020. The shares of these companies are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lau Ka Ho, aged 42, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive Director in June 2020. He is also the chairman of the
remuneration committee and a member of the audit committee of the
Company. Mr. Lau holds a Master’s degree in business administration from
The University of lowa and a Master's degree in corporate governance from
The Open University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of both The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators). He is also a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and holds a Diploma in Company Direction. He has
more than 15 years of experience in corporate management, corporate
finance and corporate secretarial areas. Mr. Lau is an executive director and
the chief executive officer of Prosperous Future Holdings Limited
(“Prosperous Future”) (Stock Code: 1259). He was previously the chief
financial officer and the company secretary of Prosperous Future from May
2019 to December 2019, the deputy chief financial officer and the
company secretary of Peace Map Holding Limited (Stock Code: 402) from
April 2013 to November 2018 and the company secretary of AVIC
International Holding (HK) Limited (Stock Code: 232) from May 2018 to
December 2018. The shares of these companies are listed on the Stock
Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lee Chi Wai, aged 42, joined the Group in January 2019 and is the
chief financial officer of the Company. He is responsible for the accounting
and financial management of the Group. Mr. Lee holds a degree of
bachelor of arts in Business Studies from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a Fellow of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants. He has over 18 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and finance management in an international accounting firm.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020 are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 78 of this
annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2020 (for the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020 is set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
6 to 19 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales attributable to the Group's largest customer and
five largest customers accounted for approximately 40% and 42%
respectively of the Group's total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

At no time during the year did a Director, a close associate (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of a Director or a Shareholder (which to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital)
has an interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 235 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes 15
and 16 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES OWNED BY THE GROUP

Particulars of the principal properties of the Group are set out on page 236
of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The reserves of the Company available for distribution to the Shareholders
as at 30 June 2020, which is calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands (the “Cayman Islands Companies Law") and the Company'’s articles
of association (the “Articles”), amounted to approximately HK$375,271,000.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 83 of this annual report and note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

DONATIONS

During the year, donations were made by the Group amounted to Peso
188,146.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley (Chairman)
Mr. Ho Wong Meng (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed with effect from 1 September 2020)
Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas (resigned with effect from 1 September 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Lu Gloria Yi

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene

Mr. Lau Ka Ho (appointed with effect from 1 June 2020)
Mr. Sun Jiong (resigned with effect from 1 June 2020)

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles and the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene,
being an independent non-executive Director, shall retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
"AGM") to be held on Thursday, 3 December 2020. The retiring Director,
being eligible, offers himself for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles, each of Mr. Lau Ka Ho and
Mr. Ho Wong Meng who was appointed as a new Director with effect from
1 June 2020 and 1 September 2020 respectively, shall hold office until the
forthcoming AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section headed
"Board of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 20 to 24 of this
annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of Ms. Lu Gloria Yi, Mr. Ha Kee Choy
Eugene and Mr. Lau Ka Ho. a confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers that
all the independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2020, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO"),
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO, including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors adopted by the Company, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

EERFETHRAENALE R EHABR
§7§Zﬂ%}\ BRI REFZERR
pind

BRTXHEEN RZZ_TFRA=1tH %
EEFRARAERTBRAEBBERANRARNEL
MEEEE (ERXREBAENE(ESF LY
B0 (TBH RG] ExvER) 2 ki - 1
R REST - BAERBES MG HIE XV
HBE7 MFE 8D RMENAME NN E MR P2
MDA R (BRESRIEZE S M RIIER
BRRIEREF A 2B IOXR) + FREE
75 M EEARDIZE 352 (BB A X IR is B it 2 £
MEEIORE  WRBARARAN 2 EFETE
R HHIRESTRIZA G AN R A S8 32 P 2 (1]

AR -

Long positions in the Shares KRB 2HFE
Number of Shares
R B
Approximate
percentage
of the
Personal Corporate number of
Name of Director interest interest Total issued Shares
BT
ROEE
EEnA EAfERE ARER w5 WPYESH
Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley SEREE T ([21E L)) - 764,223,268 764,223,268 55.82%
(“"Dr. Choi") (Note)
(Ktat)
Note:  These Shares were held by Brighten Path Limited (‘Brighten Path"), a company  ff#3t : £ % % 5 £ Brighten Path Limited ([ Brighten Path |) 4%

wholly-owned by Head and Shoulders Direct Investment Limited ("Head and
Shoulders”) which in turn is wholly-owned by Dr. Choi, an executive Director.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2020, so far as is known to the
Directors or chief executives of the Company, the Company had not been
notified by any persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section

336 of the SFO.

Long positions in the Shares

Name of Shareholder

RRER

Brighten Path
Brighten Path

Head and Shoulders
Head and Shoulders

Mediastar International Limited
("Mediastar”)

Mediastar International Limited
([ Mediastar|)

Sky Warrior Investments Limited
("Sky Warrior”)

Sky Warrior Investments Limited
([ 'sky Warrior |)

Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited
("CTFHL")

Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited
(TCTFHLD)

Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited
("CTFC")

Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited
(fcrred)

Capacity/Nature of
Interest

54 ERtE

Beneficial owner

Emfa A

Interest of a controlled
corporation
e i NCI o £

Beneficial owner

Emfa A

Interest of a controlled
corporation
SAEHIA R 2

Interest of a controlled
corporation
SAEHIA R 2

Interest of a controlled
corporation
SAEHA R 2
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BRTIXHEEN R_ZE-TFA=1+8 %
EEHARAEBTHRABHNA BEZERARQ
RIEBITHABI  RARWEETMALTNE -
RABERIRGOSIABERMD S - EERIEES K
ERBIEXVEE 2 M3 DEIESBERMAR AR RTE L
ERBAR  KERARAIRIEES KB EEG
FBEREFE 2 B MH e -

v
Approximate
percentage of
the number of
Number of Shares issued Shares Note
HEBITRA
RoEE FEMHEIL Wi
764,223,268 55.82%
764,223,268 55.82% Note 1
Hiat
69,800,000 5.10%
69,800,000 5.10% Note 2
KtaE2
69,800,000 5.10% Note 3
Ktat 3
69,800,000 5.10% Note 4
Ktat 4
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Long positions in the Shares (Continued)

Capacity/Nature of
Name of Shareholder Interest
BREER B RERME

Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II)
Limited ("CYTFH-II")

Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II)
Limited ([ CYTFH-II])

Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)
Limited ("CYTFH")

Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)
Limited ([ CYTFHI)

Notes:

Interest of a controlled

corporation
ES VNG o E

Interest of a controlled

corporation
S VNG o E

m

30

Brighten Path was wholly-owned by Head and Shoulders which in turn was
wholly-owned by Dr. Choi. Accordingly, each of Head and Shoulders and Dr. Choi
was deemed to be interested in 764,223,268 Shares held by Brighten Path under
the SFO.

Mediastar was wholly-owned by Sky Warrior. Accordingly, under the SFO, Sky
Warrior was deemed to be interested in 69,800,000 Shares held by Mediastar.

Sky Warrior was wholly-owned by CTFHL. Accordingly, under the SFO, CTFHL was
deemed to be interested in 69,800,000 Shares held by Mediastar.

CTFC held approximately 81.03% direct interest in CTFHL. Accordingly, under the
SFO, CTFC was deemed to be interested in 69,800,000 Shares held by Mediastar.

CYTFH-II held approximately 46.65% direct interest in CTFC. Accordingly, under the
SFO, CYTFH-Il was deemed to be interested in 69,800,000 Shares held by Mediastar.

CYTFH held approximately 48.98% direct interest in CTFC. Accordingly, under the
SFO, CYTFH was deemed to be interested in 69,800,000 Shares held by Mediastar.
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RN ART IR RABRER G 2 R R

RB ()

RBRB2HRE (&)
Approximate
percentage of
the number of
Number of Shares issued Shares Note
e RTREG
igvig 4= HEMHEIE Wi
69,800,000 5.10% Note 5
KtaEs
69,800,000 5.10% Note 6
Ktite
Bitat -

(1) Brighten Path F3 Head and Shoulders & # 74 * ifi Head
and Shoulders Bl E 2B A - At - RIEZSH
R HRE 1645) + Head and Shoulders & 218 + 5 A8 e
Brighten Path FT# 764,223,268 B% A% 15 B 2% o

(2)  Mediastar F Sky Warrior 2 & A  FEItt » IRIEFH K
B A& - Sky Warrior 4 48 £ 7 Mediastar Ffr 69,800,000
MR DR A i o

()  SkyWarrior BCTFHLZ2 B A - Bt © IRIEFEH K
B+ CTFHL% 48 1B 7 Mediastar FT 3% 69,800,000 %
DA RER -

(@) CIFCRACTFHLIF B 4981.03% E M » AL @ IRIEFE
F REAEEDI - CTFCHAR YER Mediastar BT 69,800,000
R& P& R A RS o

(5)  CYTFH-IRA CTFCHE B 4946.65% B o B It - BIE
5 T BB & CYTFH-I 48 VE 7 Mediastar BT #5
69,800,000 A& A% 153 7 5 #E ok ©

6)  CYTFHRACTFCHEH 494898% EH i » At @ RIKES
K BRG] - CYTFH A 43 VB 7 Mediastar T 33§ 69,800,000
PRI R R o



SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was conditionally adopted by the Shareholders on 1 November 2017 and
became unconditional on 2 November 2017. A summary of the principal
terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives and/or
rewards to eligible participants for their contributions to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The eligible participant(s) of the Share Option Scheme is/are full time or
part time employees of the Group (including any directors, whether
executive or non-executive and whether independent or not, of the
Group); and any business or joint venture partners, contractors, agents or
representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers, producers or licensors,
customers, licensees (including any sub-licensee) or distributors, landlords
or tenants (including any sub-tenants) of the Group or any person who, in
the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the
Group.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of the approval of the
Share Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible participant or grantee (including exercised
and outstanding options) in any twelve (12)-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Time of exercise of options

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, an option may be
exercised in whole or in part at any time during the period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to the grantee thereof at the time
of making an offer provided that such period shall not exceed the period of
ten (10) years from the date of the grant of the particular option but
subject to the provisions for early termination but subject to the early
termination of the Share Option Scheme.

There is no specified minimum period under the Share Option Scheme for
which an option must be held or the performance target which must be
achieved before an option can be exercised under the terms of the Share
Option Scheme.

Acceptance of options

An offer of the grant of an option shall be made to eligible participants in
writing (@and unless so made shall be invalid) in such form as the Board may
from time to time determine and shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participant concerned for a period of twenty-one (21) days
inclusive of, from the date upon which it is made provided that no such
offer shall be open for acceptance after the earlier of the date falling 10
years after the adoption date or the termination of the Share Option
Scheme.

A non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by the
grantee upon acceptance of an option. An option shall be deemed to have
been accepted when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the
option duly signed by the eligible participant together with the said
consideration of HK$1.00 is received by the Company.

Exercise price

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme may be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event will not
be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the offer date, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing
prices of the Shares as shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five (5) business days immediately preceding the offer
date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share on the offer date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall continue in force for the period
commencing from the adoption date and expiring at the close of business
on the date which falls ten (10) years after the adoption date, after such
period no further options will be granted but the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in respect of any
options granted before its expiry or termination but not yet exercised.

Movements relating to the share options granted during the year ended
30 June 2020 were as follows:
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Number of share options
BREZE
At At
1July 30 June Exercise
Date of grant Capacity 2019 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 2020 Validity period price
S R®
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4 December 2017 Business partners 13,691,572 - - - - 13691572 4 December 2017 to 194
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13,691,572 - - - - 13691572 4 December 2017 to 194
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13,691,572 - - - - 13691572 4 December 2017 to 194
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“E—tF+ZANAZE
“T-HF+ZA=R
13,691,572 - - - - 13691572 4 December 2017 to 194
3 December 2027
“E—tF+ZANAZE
“THF+ZA=R
9July 2018 Advisor 13,691,572 - - - - 13691572 9July 2018 0 8 July 2028 157
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of the duty of his/her office.

The Company has taken out directors’ liability insurance throughout the
year, which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and the directors
of the subsidiaries of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme and the Convertible Bond as disclosed,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or the Director's connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE WITH A
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed, there were no other contracts of significance between
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling Shareholder or
any its subsidiaries subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

The following Director is considered to have interests in the business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules, particulars of which are
set out below:

FEAFTRIRIRS

RIEMA - SEEFRESARBRITRERE
e - AESUBREMTAM S RISH R
ELASRMAND BA KR BX A
ERAX - BABRAT 2 BERBFESHNE
RATERR ML R ZAETIRE -

ARRENFARBEEREERRE  REERA
RAMBARERRMEENRE -

R EE RS
MR AT 2 PR AR B R TR AR S -
7S (8130 45 BT 7 S A 2 AR o o

FA-

EENEHE. RHFNGER

BRI ERSN  RFEEEE IR FREMRRE
ARBHEEMMERTRET LEMNESHE
ECHAEERERYAMENETRAAERNER
EXEE THHALD -

BB RET I Z EREHY

BRREEE SN - AR RS E AT AT B B 8 A B 22 AR A
SRl H A a] B ) 2 8 3 A L 0 6 A B s
FRERNRRENERGL

EENHBRBDAELS

R ETTARA - TR EE AR B B o R
REEEBBRRTEERHT 2 LB T RAR
- SERIIMT -

Name of entity which business
is considered to compete or
likely to compete with the business

Name of Director of the Group
HEBRERELAEBMEBER
EEgE HARERRFE2ERER

Mr. Ho Wong Meng Frontier Capital Group Limited and
its subsidiary
Frontier Capital Group Limited

KNEWB AR

Ho Wong Meng %t 4

Note:

Group Limited.
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Mr. Ho Wong Meng is interested in 41,443,500 shares of Frontier Capital Group
Limited, representing 15% of the number of issued shares of Frontier Capital

Description of business of
the entity which is
considered to compete or
likely to compete with the
business of the Group
BIRREAEBELER
FARERRF2ERZ
E3 3

Gaming

B¥

Hrat -

Nature of interestin
the entity

REZERzERME

Executive chairman and
director

HITESRRES

Ho Wong Meng 5& 4 74 Frontier Capital Group Limited
241,443,500 5 [i% 10 F ¥ B R a5 0 AR E R Frontier

Capital Group Limited B E#7TA% 15 15% ©



DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS
(Continued)

As the Board is independent of the boards of the above-mentioned entities
and the above Director cannot control the Board, the Group is therefore
capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length
from, the business of these entities.

Save as disclosed above, no Directors or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following connected transactions during the year
ended 30 June 2020:

Sale and Purchase Agreement and Loan Agreement

On 14 February 2020, the Company and Next Leader Fund, L.P. (as the
purchaser) entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to sell and the purchaser has
conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of
Newworth. Newworth is principally engaged in the operation of Wigan
Athletic Football Club which is a professional association football club
based in Wigan, Greater Manchester, England and a sports stadium, namely
the DW Stadium, with conference and other facilities. The total
consideration for the sale shares was GBP17,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$177,235,000).

All conditions precedent under the sale and purchase agreement had been
fulfilled and subsequently the completion took place on 29 May 2020.

In accordance with the sale and purchase agreement, upon completion,
the Company (as the lender) and Wigan Athletic A.F.C. Limited (as the
borrower) entered into a loan agreement in an aggregate principal amount
of GBP24,357,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$243,737,000), and the
deed of guarantee was also entered into by the purchaser in favour of the
Company along with the loan agreement.

Immediately subsequent to the entering into of the loan agreement, the
pre-existing loan in the amount GBP24,357,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$243,737,000) has been repaid to the Company, and as a
result, Wigan Athletic AF.C. Limited is no longer indebted to the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Sale and Purchase Agreement and Loan Agreement
(Continued)

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley, being the chairman of the Board, an executive
Director and a controlling shareholder of the Company, through a
company, subscribed 51% of the limited partnership interests in the
purchaser and acted as one of the limited partners of the purchaser.
Accordingly, the purchaser was an associate of a connected person of the
Company, and thus a connected person of the Company, therefore the
sale and purchase agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constituted a connected transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Upon completion, the purchaser indirectly
held approximately 86.24% of the entire issued ordinary shares of Wigan
Athletic AF.C. Limited, whereas Newworth became a connected person of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
entering into of the loan agreement (including the deed of guarantee)
constituted connected transactions for the Company.

Further details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 18
November 2019, 13 December 2019, 14 February 2020, 2 March 2020, 20
March 2020, 17 April 2020, 5 May 2020 and 29 May 2020; and the circular of
the Company dated 8 May 2020.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the
connected transactions entered into by the Group during the year ended
30 June 2020.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company did not have any
other connected transactions which were subject to the reporting
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 30
June 2020.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 30 June 2020, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on information available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the percentage of
the Shares which are in the hands of the public exceeds 25.0% of the
Company's total number of issued Shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights provisions in the Articles, or under the
Cayman Islands Companies Law, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants, retired and did
not seek for re-appointment as the auditor of the Company with effect
from the conclusion of the AGM held on 27 September 2017. Ernst &
Young ("EY
auditor of the Company following the retirement of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants. EY has resigned as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 12 April 2018 as the Company and EY could
not reach a consensus on the overseas audit arrangements in respect of

"), Certified Public Accountants, was appointed as the new

the Group following the proposed acquisition in the United Kingdom. With
the recommendation of the audit committee of the Company, BDO
Limited, Certified Public Accountants, was appointed as the new auditor of
the Company with effect from 12 April 2018 to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of EY and was subsequently re-appointed as
auditor of the Company at the AGM held on 5 September 2018. A
resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint BDO
Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 September 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures and to complying with the statutory
and regulatory requirements with an aim to maximising the Shareholders’
values and interests as well as to enhancing the stakeholders’ transparency
and accountability. During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Company has
complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except for the following
deviation:

Code Provision A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance Code stipulates that
independent non-executive directors and other non-executive directors, as
equal board members, should give the board and any committees on
which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and varied
backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and active
participation. Generally they should also attend general meetings to gain
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.

Ms. Lu Gloria Yi, an independent non-executive Director, was unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4 December
2019 as she had another business engagement at the time of such
meeting.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the “Code on Securities Transactions”), the standard of which is
no less than the required standard provided in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code").

The Company, having made specific enquiries of all Directors, was not
aware of any non-compliance with the required standard provided in the
Model Code and the Code on Securities Transactions throughout the year
ended 30 June 2020.

38 Annual Report 4% 2019/20

TEELER
ARARBAEREKEZEEEREREER
WEFEEMREERTE  BRABRTEREAE
EEfm TiReEHFEMEZEHELBENK -
ARAREBEE-_Z-_ZTFAZTHLEFEARR
BT ETMARRIME 4 FE(EEE AT RZST
BIHEST + METFI IR BB SUBR A

EEERTZ TG EACTIRTHR - B
HITESREMIFRTESERREMESHS
REMUNEFERE  BERLFESFTE A
RAFHEZEERENZEENERL R G2 HE
% UERE EXABLTANERRER
EHER - MY ELFERERARE - HRROE
RBERENTHE-

BUFRTESTEZLTARNGRBTRA M
EBEY  HAREEARAR -_T-AF+=
AUBRITZERBAFAE -

EFHTRSFH ZIFETH

ARBERMNESTETERR S ZRETR([FE
#R 5T - EREAR EWAR RIS 10E
(ERETAEFETESFRHHFRESTR) (115
A IR EIRERSR

Ea
RBE_Z_ZTFA=THLEFERAFGEMT
BTRETARELFR TSR ERE LR
e



B IREEAR A E

International Entertainment Corporation

Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The principal duty of the Board is to ensure that the Company is properly
managed in the interest of the Shareholders.

The Chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) takes primary responsibility for
ensuring that good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established, and is responsible for the management of the Board and
ensures that all Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising
at Board meetings. The chief executive officer of the Company (the “Chief
Executive Officer”) is primarily responsible for the overall management of
the Group and oversight of the management. The management is
responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group. The roles and
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are clearly established. In addition, the Company has established
the executive committee, the audit committee, the nomination committee
and the remuneration committee with respective terms of reference to
assist the Board in focusing on specific matters, fulfill their roles and
functions delegated by the Board, and make any necessary
recommendations of the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five Directors, of
whom two are executive Directors and three are independent non-
executive Directors. The names of the Directors during the year and up to
the date of this annual report are set out below:

Executive Directors
Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley (Chairman)
Mr. Ho Wong Meng (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed with effect from 1 September 2020)
Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas (resigned with effect from 1 September 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Lu Gloria Vi

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene

Mr. Lau Ka Ho (appointed with effect from 1 June 2020)
Mr. Sun Jiong (resigned with effect from 1 June 2020)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Biographical information of the Directors and the relationship among the
members of the Board are set out in the section headed “Board of Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 20 to 24 of this annual report.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter should
be dealt with by a physical board meeting rather than a written resolution.
Independent non-executive Directors who, and whose close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules), have no material interest in the
transaction should be present at that Board meeting.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company considers that all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

The Board held five meetings during the year ended 30 June 2020. Notice
of not less than 14 days was given to all the Directors for the regular Board
meetings and the Directors were given an opportunity to include matters
in the agenda for the regular Board meetings.

The attendance of each Director at the said five Board meetings, the AGM
held on 4 December 2019 and the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company (the "EGM") held on 29 May 2020 are set out below:

Executive Directors HITES

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley (Chairman) EHEAEE L+ (E/FE)

Mr. Ho Wong Meng (ete? Ho Wong Meng %t 4 #1)
(Chief Executive Officer) (TTBAEE)

Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas o2 BRI o A (i)

Independent non-executive Directors Bk HITEE

Ms. Lu Gloria Yi PEZEz+

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene BEHA%AE

Mr. Lau Ka Ho (e BIR 5 de A i)

Mr. Sun Jiong Mee TRMA e A )
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Notes:

Q) Mr. Ho Wong Meng was appointed as an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 1 September 2020.

(2) Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas resigned as an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 1 September 2020.

(3) Mr. Lau Ka Ho was appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 1 June 2020.

(4) Mr. Sun Jiong resigned as an independent non-executive Director with effect from
1 June 2020.

The external auditor attended the AGM held on 4 December 2019 to
answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence and the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors during the year.

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years in accordance with the Articles and the Listing Rules. The non-
executive Directors are subject to the aforesaid retirement requirements
and are appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The retiring
Directors shall be eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the first general meeting of the Company after his/
her appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

Each of Ms. Lu Gloria Yi, Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene and Mr. Lau Ka Ho, who
were appointed as independent non-executive Directors, entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on the date of his/her appointment and is subject to the
Articles.

Appropriate liability insurance for the Directors has been arranged for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Newly appointed Directors are provided with induction training. Each of
them will receive a Director’s Handbook which contains the terms of
reference of the Board’'s committees, the information on the duties and
responsibilities of directors under statutory regulations and the Listing
Rules, and other information on corporate governance matters. They will
also receive the materials on the operations and business of the Group.

The Directors should participate in continuing professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company
has provided the Directors with the monthly updates on the Group’s
performance, position and prospects, and the latest development of the
Listing Rules, and the relevant laws, rules and regulations relating to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

All Directors have provided the Company with their training records for the
year ended 30 June 2020 and all of them had participated in continuing
professional development activities by attending the training courses,
seminars, workshops and/or training on corporate governance, regulatory
development or other relevant topics during the year ended 30 June 2020.
A summary of the training received by each of the Directors during the
year ended 30 June 2020 is as follows:

BITES
A
Ho Wong Meng 5t 4

Executive Directors
Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley
Mr. Ho Wong Meng

Independent non-executive Directors BAKHITES
Ms. Lu Gloria Yi Fezrz+

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene BHET R4

Mr. Lau Ka Ho BRzEAE
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The executive committee of the Company (the “Executive Committee”)
comprises two executive Directors as at the date of this annual report,
namely Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley (Chairman of the Executive Committee)
and Mr. Ho Wong Meng. The primary duties of the Executive Committee
are, inter alia, to advise the Board in formulating policies in relation to the
business operations of the Group, supervise the management to
implement the policies laid down by the Board, make recommendations to
the Board as to the Group's business plans, and oversee the management
and the daily operations of the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) comprises three independent non-executive Directors as at
the date of this annual report, namely Mr. Lau Ka Ho (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Ms. Lu Gloria Yi and Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene,
with written terms of reference which are available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the website of the Company. The primary duties of
the Remuneration Committee are, inter alia, to make recommendations to
the Board on the Company'’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
the Directors and the senior management of the Group and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing the
remuneration policy and to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and the senior
management of the Group, and the remuneration of the non-executive
Directors.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The remuneration of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group is based on the performance and experience of individuals and is
determined with reference to the Group’s performance, the remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions. During
the year ended 30 June 2020, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to review the remuneration policy of the Company and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the Directors and
the senior management of the Group. The attendance records of the
members of the Remuneration Committee are set out below:

Committee members
ZEERE

Mr. Lau Ka Ho (Chairman) Mt

Ms. Lu Gloria Yi FEZE iz 4

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene EEA R4

Mr. Sun Jiong o2 TN 4 A (er2)

Notes:

m Mr. Lau Ka Ho was appointed as the chairman and a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 1 June 2020.

(2) Mr. Sun Jiong resigned as the chairman and a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 1 June 2020.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) comprises two independent non-executive Directors and one
executive Director as at the date of this annual report, namely Ms. Lu Gloria
Yi (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene and
Mr. Ho Wong Meng, with written terms of reference which are available on
the website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, inter alia, to review the
structure, size and the composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations to
the Board on any proposed changes to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships; to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors; to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman,
the managing Director or the Chief Executive of the Company; and to
nominate and recommend candidates to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
for the Board's approval.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board. Under the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee is
responsible to assess the appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge,
expertise and diversity (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural/
educational background, or professional experience) required on the Board
based on current and projected future activities of the Group, and the
extent to which the required skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity are represented on the Board; to oversee the Board succession to
maintain an appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity on the Board; to propose to the Board the measurable objectives;
and to review the Board Diversity Policy and discuss any required changes
with the Board.

In regard to the criteria for evaluating and selecting candidates, the
Nomination Committee shall consider two types of qualifications, as
follows:

l. Characteristics of individual director

Integrity and accountability

Informed judgment

Prudence and maturity

Principled and professional

Other characteristics as the Nomination Committee deems
appropriate

Il. Competenciesin the following areas to ensure the
Board’s overall suitability

Accounting and finance

Law

Industry knowledge

Marketing

Other competencies as the Nomination Committee deems
appropriate

The Nomination Committee shall also consider:

the structure, size and composition of the Board;

the appropriate mix of competencies between Directors to enable
the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively;

the appropriate balance of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise
and diversity of the Board is maintained, and the Board Diversity
Policy adopted by the Board is followed;

the capability of the candidate to devote the necessary time and
commitment to the role; and

the potential conflicts of interest, and independence.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

If more than one candidate are nominated by the Nomination Committee,
the Nomination Committee shall base on the criteria and recommend the
most competent candidate to the Board. The Nomination Committee shall
also consider the number of board positions they hold in other firms. After
the Nomination Committee reviewed and considered the candidates, the
Nomination Committee makes recommendations to the Board on any
proposed changes to implement the Company’s corporate strategy.
Detailed background information in relation to potential candidate should
be provided to all Directors for consideration. An offer of a director
appointment must be made by the Board’s approval, with any
recommendations from the Nomination Committee having been
circulated to all Director. The new director shall sign a consent letter to act
as a Director.

In accordance with the Articles and the Listing Rules, (i) every Director
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years,
all retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election at each AGM; and (ii)
any Director appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next
general meeting of the Company, the retiring Director shall be eligible for
re-election at the general meeting of the Company. For those who offered
themselves for re-election at the AGM or the other general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee shall take into account the
fulfillment of duties, contribution, and attendance of Board meetings and
general meetings. The Nomination Committee shall also access whether
the retiring Directors continue to meet the criteria. After the Nomination
Committee reviewed and considered the retiring Directors who offer
themselves for re-election, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board. Based on the recommendations made by
the Nomination Committee, the Board shall make recommendations to the
Shareholders on the retiring Directors standing for re-election at the AGM
or other general meeting of the Company, and provide available
biographical information of the retiring Directors in accordance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules to enable the Shareholders to make
informed decision on the re-election of such retiring Directors at the AGM
or other general meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee considers that all Board members possess the
relevant skills and knowledge in the area of the business operations of the
Group with several of them also possess professional qualifications. The
Nomination Committee considers that an appropriate mix of skills,
experience, knowledge, expertise and diversity on the Board is maintained
and therefore no measurable objectives were proposed to the Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the Board; to
assess the appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity on the Board; to review the Board Diversity Policy and monitor its
implementation; to review the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; to recommend the appointment of new Directors; and
to consider the qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for election
at the annual general meeting of the Company.

The attendance records of the members of the Nomination Committee are
set out below:

TREGHRE

RBEEE(H)
BE_Z-_ZFAA=+HILEE RELEEQ
W Ed URIEEEMEE  ARK
@&-%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&i&%»ﬁm I
EZRIA: b  RNEEELTIEBER
EERH 1T Mﬂa FHTEEZBIHND
ERZAHES UREBEEARABRTBEA
SRR RIEEYER -

REZBERBZHFEREHIINT

Committee members Attendance

ZEENE HEIRE

Ms. Lu Gloria Yi (Chairman) BEZeir 4 (/%) 1

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene EHAEAE Al

Mr. Ho Wong Meng ®e ) Ho Wong Meng 4t 4 (4 7) 0/0

Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas %2 Fe SE MR 4 AE (iit2) 11

Notes: Hiat -

1) Mr. Ho Wong Meng was appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee (1) Ho Wong Meng e £ ELZ T AIREEZEEKE B
with effect from 1 September 2020. TEFNA—BBEK -

(2)  Mr.Chan Chun Yiu Thomas resigned as a member of the Nomination Committee  (2)  FRABGLLERHTIRZZEEKE AT _TF N A
with effect from 1 September 2020. —HBEY -

AUDIT COMMITTEE BZEEE

The Audit Committee comprises all three independent non-executive
Directors, as at the date of this annual report namely Mr. Ha Kee Choy
Eugene (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms. Lu Gloria Yi and Mr. Lau Ka
Ho, with written terms of reference which are available on the website of
the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company. One of the members
of the Audit Committee possesses appropriate professional accounting
qualification as defined under the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are, inter alia, to oversee the relationship with the
external auditor, to review the financial information of the Group, and to
review and supervise the financial reporting process, internal controls and
risk management functions of the Group.

RAFHAY  EREZESHEB=RBILIFH
TEFMEK NEEALSLE(BRZEEXR)
F;‘Ejﬁﬁi&% St HEmMBESE N

IBERARAREE - BEREZEGET —HK

,\,\ﬁtmiﬁﬁ'JPﬁﬁ;ﬁZmz%% AR - &
REEEZIZRAR/(HTERE) EEAAR R

SNERZEEN 2 BR - BRARBZMBER - A
Kigst REBAREZ MBERERF - WEREE
KEBRERINEE °
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the year, the Audit Committee held three meetings to review the
financial reporting process, internal controls and risk management systems
of the Group, the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Group,
the Company’s reports and accounts including the interim and annual
results of the Group, the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and provide advice and recommendations to the Board.
The Audit Committee also met with the external auditor not less than twice
to discuss the financial reporting process and internal controls of the Group
during the year and had reviewed the interim report and the annual report
of the Company.

The attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are set
out below:

BREST (#)

FR BRZEGERITZRNGRE  UWRHAE
BMBERET  NFEEREAREERS W
SRR AN FRARRREERE (2
EARKE PR 2FEE) - B SNEZHREN 2
FHRERGR YMEFSRHERLNES -
FR - BERZBENGEINERBEETTIOR
MR &% - AR A 8 2 BE 75 B A2 Fr 82 R P
B YERMARRZFHIRENRFR -

Committee members Attendance
EZEEHE R
Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene (Chairman) BEHETRAE(FE) 3/3
Ms. Lu Gloria Yi Fezoz+ 3/3
Mr. Lau Ka Ho (ere? B3R = 4 A (1) 0/0
Mr. Sun Jiong "e? TN 4 A (Wix2) 33

Notes:

(1) Mr. Lau Ka Ho was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee with effect
from 1 June 2020.

) Mr. Sun Jiong resigned as a member of the Audit Committee with effect from
1 June 2020.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the remuneration in relation to audit
services paid or payable to the auditor of the Company was approximately
HK$2,150,000 and the remuneration in relation to non-audit services
(including review of interim results, tax consultancy and other non-audit
services) paid or payable to the auditor of the Company and its affiliated
firm was approximately HK$950,000.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations from time to
time;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Group;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  todevelop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the Directors and the employees of the
Group; and

(v)  to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and for reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are established in order to carry on the business of the entity in an orderly
and efficient manner, ensure adherence to management policies,
safeguard the assets, secure as far as possible the completeness and
accuracy of records, and identify potential risks so as to manage the
identified risks, undertake the measures to mitigate the potential effects of
any misstatement or loss arising from such identified risks. The
management of the Group is responsible to identify the potential risks. The
identified risks would then be assessed for the likelihood and impact on
the financial, operational and compliance of the Group. The management
of the Group would undertake relevant measures to mitigate the potential
effects of any misstatement or loss arising from such identified risks. The
identified risks would also be reported to the Directors and disclosed the
significant risks in this annual report. In addition, the Group has adopted a
policy to handle and disseminate the inside information of the Group,
which was designed based on “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(Continued)

During the year, the Board conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group through the
internal audit function of the Group. The Group engaged an independent
firm to perform the internal audit function to carry out the review on the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The review
covered the controls over the financial, operational and compliance of the
Group. The internal audit function of the Group considered the scale of
operations of the Group and resources available and its review was based
on tests of controls, inspection of the related documents and discussion
with the relevant personnel of the Group.

After the internal audit function conducted the review, the internal audit
function submitted its review report to the Audit Committee with the key
audit findings and recommendations to improve the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group which were also presented at the
Board meeting. The internal audit function concluded that no significant
deficiency in the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group was found during the review.

In addition, the management of the Group has provided a confirmation to
the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. Having considered the review report prepared by
the internal audit function of the Group and the confirmation on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group provided by the management of the Group, the Board considered
that the existing risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are effective and adequate.

The Board also reviewed, and was satisfied with, the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of the staff of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and the training programmes and budget of
the Group'’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and include the
applicable disclosures required by the Listing Rules and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The reporting responsibilities of the auditor of the Company on the
Independent Auditor's Report are set out on pages 70 to 77 of this annual
report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Chun Kit ("Mr. Wong"), is engaged and appointed by the
Company from an external secretarial services provider as its Company
Secretary. The primary corporate contact person of the Company is Dr.
Choi Chiu Fai Stanley, an executive Director. Mr. Wong confirmed that he
has received 15 hours professional trainings under the requirement of Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year under review.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company

The following procedures are subject to the Articles and applicable
legislation and regulations.

1. Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent
to the Board or the Company Secretary at the address of the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, and an EGM shall be held within two (2)
months after the date of the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of the date of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene an EGM, the Shareholder(s) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by such
Shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of the Board to convene an
EGM shall be reimbursed by the Company to such Shareholder(s).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company (Continued)

2. The written requisition must state the purposes of requisitioning the
EGM, and be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each to be signed by such
Shareholders or any one of them.

3. If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the Shareholder(s) concerned
will be advised of the invalidity and accordingly, an EGM will not be
convened.

4. An EGM must be called by written notice of not less than fourteen
(14) clear days and not less than ten (10) clear business days but if
permitted by the Listing Rules, an EGM may be called by shorter
notice, subject to the applicable laws, if it is so agreed by a majority
in number of the Shareholders having the right to attend and vote at
the EGM, being a majority together representing not less than ninety
five per cent. (95%) of the total voting rights of all Shareholders
having a right to attend and vote at the general meeting of the
Company.

Shareholders who have enquires about the above procedures or other
enquires relating to written requisition for an EGM may write to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong.

AMENDMENT OF THE COMPANY’S
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There have been no changes in the Company's constitutional documents
during the year ended 30 June 2020. The consolidated version of the
memorandum of association of the Company and the Articles is available
on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, payment and amount of the dividends will be subject to
be discretion of the Directors and will be dependent upon the Company's
earning financial condition, cash requirements and availability, the
provisions of relevant laws and all other relevant factors.
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REPORTING SCOPE AND STANDARD

Pursuant to Appendix 27 Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (the “ESG Guide”) of the Listing Rules, International Entertainment
Corporation and its subsidiaries reviewed, identified and disclosed herein
the material environmental and social issues and aspects, which are
considered to have significant impacts and are relevant to the Group's
business and stakeholders for the year ended 30 June 2020.

The Group is principally engaged in the business of the hotel operations,
leasing of properties equipped with entertainment equipment, football
club operations and live poker events operations. The Group has a
responsibility to maximise shareholder returns and this is one of the key
elements to reinforce the foundation of the Group for long-term
development and success. This is achieved not only through the Group
having financial strength but also through investing in employees and
wider social practices.

This ESG Report aims to share our key sustainability performances. Our
reporting boundary is limited to Hong Kong and Philippines unless
otherwise specified. The Group provides an overview of the environment,
community, employment and labour practices and operation convention
for the year ended 30 June 2020, with coverage of the Company’s lease
operations and its hotel hospitality business in Manila, Philippines (the
“Selected Business Segments”).

STAKEHOLDERS’ ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

To better understand stakeholders’ concerns and expectations, the Group
has adopted a multi-pronged approach to engage its key stakeholders on
a regular basis through various channels. We have striven to ensure the
information disclosed herein is in compliance with the four reporting
principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency under the
ESG Reporting Guide required by the Stock Exchange. We will continue to
strengthen its collection of reporting information, so as to enhance its
performance of social responsibilities and relevant disclosures. The
following table summarises stakeholders’ participation channels and their
expectations and demands. While we pay attention to all ESG issues which
affect our businesses and stakeholders, we have identified the material
issues in each sector of our business which we have paid additional focus
on. Materiality of these issues is identified through stakeholder
engagement exercises, management reviews and industry analysis.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continued)

R ESRREEMNFE @)

Stakeholders Participation Channels Topics concerned

& SRRE BEERE
Shareholders/Inventors General meetings Financial results
B REE Annual reports Sustainability business development
Direct communication Environmental responsibility
Group website Company transparency
&N IR E S
FHR AREEBER
HEER RERME
AN E APk NEERE
Clients Customer service Customer satisfaction survey and feedback
=P Daily communication Protection and management on customer information
Environmental responsibility
Customer service hotline and email enquiry
PR BERmMEERE MR E
HEER® EPERRIERER
RIREME
BPRERGEREHEH
Employees Regular performance appraisals Career development
EE8 Frequent meetings Health and safety
Training programs Remuneration and benefits
Sustainability development
E R EXER
BEEE BENZR
H )l R 12 Hr i e k@ A
AREER
Suppliers Close communication Corporate contribution
e Order/contract execution Product quality

Communities/
Non-governmental
organisations

i, FEBUR AR 8

Donation and support to the
community

A4t 8 1 Bk R BRI SR
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group dedicates its effort in minimising the impact of the Group's
business operations on the environment and believes that it is responsible
to protect the environment. It emphasises the need of conserving natural
resources and energy as well as minimising waste production and
greenhouse gas emissions. The Group embraces a responsible approach in
environment protection and implements environmental protection
policies to meet the requirements under the relevant laws and regulations.
The environmental protection policies focus on three areas. They are
emissions, use of resources, and the environment and natural resources.

The adopted environmental policies with a focus to ensure full compliance
with applicable legislation and requirements, promote environmental
awareness among staff, adopt eco-friendly practices in daily operation,
dispose in an environmental responsible way and reduce waste where
practicable, reusing and recycling materials.

The Group identified the following material issues of environmental
protection, which are discussed the actions the Group has been taken for

as below.

Environmental protection

Energy consumption and emission

(i) UseLED lightin the hotel areas and guestrooms
(i) Install variable-frequency drive to regulate motors
(i) Reduce numbers of light tubes

(iv)  Drive less and carpool

Waste consumption and wastewater management

(i) Dispose the waste by Wet/Organic and Dry/Non Organic
categories

(i) Recycle the waste by type, with separate containers for metal,
paper and plastic

(i) Clean and sanitise the plastic bins for the waste after time of
usage before putting it back to its area of origin

(iv)  Install sewage treatment plant and equipment to recycle the
plant effluent

(v)  Recorded disposal of used oil and took pictures prior disposal
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Rk dSREGRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) RIBRE &)
Energy consumption and emission BEREFE R BER

In any case, reducing in energy consumption is the important steps to save
the environment as well as the operating costs of the Group's business
operations. The following table shows the electricity, diesel, liquefied
petroleum gas (“LPG") and refrigerant consumption of the Group's business
operations in the Philippines during the year under review.

In addition to the reduction of waste production and the conservative use
of energy or natural resources, the Group promotes the minimisation of
greenhouse gas emissions generated by the Group. To this end, the Group
encourages the environmental care in its working environment. Unit of fuel
consumed — 1 Kilogram (“Kg") of gas consumed is equal to 48 mega joules
("MJ") for Towngas or 46MJ for LPG.

PMERIE T » B B IR H FE R R & IR IE SR A
AEEREEBRREENAZEEZ—F - TRE
TREBFEARKERIFREREXBE
o - Re AR (BRI AmR]) REL B ZH
e -

RO BEYESL R EREERS B RERIN
AEBETHESREASEEE 2 REREBHEN -
Rt - AEBRERE TERRN ERFIRE o
MEDEFEEN 1 TR TR REEREERN
48IKFEE (KER DERS46KEFT RICAHR -

Tonnes
Mg
2020 2019
Emission BER —E-EF —E-NEF
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) RE2H (NOX) 29,637 48,776
Sulphur oxides (SOx) BRE b (SOx) 251 297
(restated)
(fE%))
Particulate Matter (PM) BIZRLT (PM) - 1
1July2019to 1 April 20180
30 June 2020 30June 2019  Units
—ZE-hEF —E2-N\F
tA—RAZ mMA—HZ
—B-EF —E-NF
Energy Consumption BER N E A~NA=1H NA=+TH Bl
Electricity BN 9,765,452 14,480,259  Kilowatt hours
TR
LPG BALAER 160,249 263,739 Kilograms
Fr
Diesel fuel B 6,841 25426  Kilograms
(restated) T2
(s &%)
Refrigerant U278 232 841  Kilograms
Fr
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Waste management

Apart from the smart use energy as mentioned above, the Group
encourages its employees to reduce water and paper consumption,
promote the use of electronic copies for filing and reading purpose, and
collect waste materials which can be recycled for use. The waste water
treatment system were functional and none of any major interruptions due
to such as equipment breakdown or maintenance in the operation
throughout the year. We applied and submitted Quarterly Self-Monitoring
Report ("QSM Report”) to The Philippines’ Laguna Lake Development
Authority (LLDA) in quarterly by complies with the Republic Act 4850, the
renewed LLDA Discharged Permit was obtained on 23 June 2020. The
Group is not aware of any significant generation of hazardous waste, and
there was no incidence of non-compliance of the relevant environmental
protection laws and regulations in the Philippines.

The following tables shows the data of greenhouse gas emissions covered
the business operations of the Group in the Philippines during the year
under review.

Resources usage and emission ERAERFEN
Water 7K

Paper R

Resources recycled 2 EKREIR
Paper AR

Plastic B

Glass bottles BIEMm

Can 4

Qil H

RiE d2RERHRS

RIE(RE (®)
BEYEE
B b RS BA 5 B AR SN - AN EEENE B R A A

B BN LMEEIEEAETER UK
WEREIRARAZER - 5 KBEERFERARS
A AREERFETERRGEREIETREMA
FRERF IEEEBR - RM2EFHMBE
(Republic Act) 2 4850 fék + & Z= [Z [A] The Philippines’
Laguna Lake Development Authority (LLDA) B3 55 & 12
REFEREERS(FTEERESERE]) - I
R-T-TFE XA -+ = BEEZLDABINRET
& (LLDA Discharged Permit) o Zx 5 B R 2138 LA &=
REEEMES  TEBUSEEERGRELRE

NOEMRZ NEREN -
TREATROBEFEARNEERIFEBELEER
FrEE 2 R EREEEIE -
1 July 2019 to 1 April 2018 to
30 June 2020 30June 2019  Units
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
tA—HZ mMA—H=Z
—EC-BE —E-NF
A~NA=1+H NA=TH B
203,857 272,315  Cubic metres
AV
20,560 24615  Kilograms
T
1July 2019 to 1 April 2018 to
30 June 2020 30June 2019  Units
—E-hEF —ZE-)N\F
tA—RA=Z MA—HZ
—B-EF —E-NF
AA=1+H NA=+H Bl
20,560 24,615  Kilograms
T
5,321 7,163  Kilograms
Fr
110 600  Kilograms
T
2,759 3310  Kilograms
T
5,450 13,955  Litres
AT
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Waste management (Continued)

Resources non recycled FEWEIR
Wet =t
Dry g7 1%

Greenhouse gas emission

Greenhouse gas ("GHG") emission includes carbon dioxide ("CO2"), and
nitrous oxide ("NO2"). The major sources of air and greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions are energy consumptions, including the fuel consumed by the
corporate vehicles in respect of tour buses of the hotel and private cars and
purchased electricity used in offices and the hotel daily operations. Types
of relevant emission data are set out as follows.

RIE(RE (®)
BYER (&)

1July 2019 to 1 April 2018 to

30 June 2020 30June 2019  Units
—E-NF —FN\F
tA—H=ZE MA—B=Z=
—ECRF —E-NF
AA=t+H NA=+tH B

347,713 256,052 Kilograms
TR
14,258 25,590  Kilograms
TR
BEREHER
BEERB(CEEREDINERE_SLHRT R

D E—ft—A(—8Et=-8) - =R
EREHERZ EE2RRBERERE - BIEBEER
BEE AT%%&M%iﬁﬁﬁﬁWﬂM&%f Lo
RERHEARELERAMBEZES - HEH
RERESINT -

CO2 equivalent emission (kg)

—GtREREE (TR)
2020 2019
GHG Emission EEREHERK —E_EE —E—NE
Direct emissions (Scope 1) ®) BEEHER (SE — ) e 501,522 853,559
Energy indirect emissions (Scope 2) ot BEIRE EE BER (S8 E — ) e 5,838,764 8,657,747
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) et Hoqth B HE Ak (S =) e 152,083 205,088
Notes: (i) Direct emissions (Scope 1) arose mainly from the fuel consumption. Ktz - G) BEEN(EE—) 2 EZHRRBMEERE -

(i) Energy indirect emissions (Scope 2) arose mainly from the electricity
consumption.

(ifi) Other indirect emissions arose mainly from paper usage.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group committed to provide an inclusive and harmonious workplace
which provides equal opportunity to all employees regardless of gender,
age, nationality, religion, sexual orientation, disability, or other aspects of
diversity. The Group identified the following material issues of employment
and labour practices, which are discussed as below.

Employment and labours practices

Employment

Obtain the certificate of compliance on general labour standards
issued by Department of labour and employment in National Capital
Region

Human resource profile

Analysis the structure and turnover of employees

Health, safety and security

Monitor to the injury and incidents

Development and training

Provide training to all level staffs

Anti-child and forced labour

Ensure all employees are fulfilling the job requirements underlying
their respective positions

RiE d2RERHRS

BlE&5% TER
AEBBNRE—BRARMEZTESH - 5
SRERRHUTSHE  MTWAER - Fit-
B R R RRREMB TS E
AEEBREUTEMESTHRIEARR -
T IR -

ERERRZEIER
&=
/5 B K B B[R 45 T N {2 17 2B (Department
of labour and employment in National Capital

Region) & Hi 2 —RE THERIGRES

ANEREER

fef - Z2RIRE
ERXBREHER
TR Mg
AERE TRHEEI
RETR&HIST

BRERERNARSSABUZABIE

Fk
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1= 45

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
Employment

We have programmes in place, such as our expanded honing skills in
hospitality programme in 2020 that specifically trains ethnic minority
youth. Our policy and processes are in place to ensure that reported
incidents of discrimination are heard and handled in a fair and appropriate
manner. We deal with these reports very seriously and encourage
reporting. In 2020 there were no reports of discrimination. In the spirit of
continuous improvement, we will roll out several initiatives in 2020 with
the aim of increasing awareness in this area.

We strictly follow the compliance with labour standards pursuant to
provisions of the Labour Code of the Philippines and other applicable laws,
rules and regulations and have a zero tolerance policy to unethical
employment terms involving child or forced labour. We have obtained the
certificate of compliance on general labour standards issued by
Department of labour and employment in National Capital Region since
2017. During the year, the Group do not aware of any business branch that
hire child or forced labour.
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=R
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BEE WEHEIELER RS _TFUE
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RIE HERERKRE

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued) (BIERS T &8 #)

Our workforce BN ES

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had a total of 285 (2019: 338) employeesin  R-ZZE-_ZTEXA=1+H  ANEERLETER
the Selected Business Segments. The workforce categorised by gender,age D 2B 285 % (ZZE— N4 : 338K ) BB - 21t
groups, geographical region and employment type are depicted as below: Bl ~ FEE4E 5] - & REFEERNZE D Z2EE LY

m
No. of employees in
Selected Business Segments
RETXBIHEEAH
As at As at
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
R=BoBE R -_T-NF
ANA=1+H ~NA=1H
Total #Et 283 338
By gender IR
Male 5 176 209
Female 8 107 129
By age RER
18-30 years old 18 = 3075% 107 128
31-49 years old 3124958 144 180
50 or Over 50 years old 50 55481 50 B%, 32 30
By location b @
Hong Kong &5 13 12
Philippines JEEE 270 326
By employment category ZIERER
Executive/Senior level TBRAE / BHREEE 46 32
Middle level FRAREIRE 237 306
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Rk d2RERES

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
Retaining talents

Employees are the most valuable assets of the Group. To retain and
motivate employees, the Group offers competitive remuneration package.
Remuneration package is reviewed annually to reflect employees’
performance, experiences and market standards. Apart from salary
payments, other staff benefits included provident fund contributions,
medical insurance coverage and performance related discretionary
bonuses. During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group recorded a
decrease in number of resigned staffs of approximately 119 employees
(2019: 97 employees).

(RIER S TER @)

BEREAL

BEDNAKEREEEE - H /%&EJME
AEBREAEBFNZH M\HL kST t¢
EH URREEXRSE %&%ﬁ&m%@ o R ¥
I R B THRNBEIBEHK - BERR

RERKRBEBBRBEL - BE_T _TFRA
=+HHLEFE  AEBEBERE TAZURADH 1195
BE(ZT—hF: 7%ER) -

No. of employees in
Selected Business Segments

RETEBRI>BEEAK
As at As at
30 June 2020 30June 2019
R-E—EfF —E-NF
ANA=1+H NAZ=ZTH
Total et 119 97
By gender 145
Male = 61 51
Female 8 58 46
By age R
18-30 years old 182 305% 38 49
31-49 years old 31 E495% 65 41
50 or Over 50 years old 50 2k 483 50 5%, 16 7
By location i &
Hong Kong &5 1 3
Philippines JFEE 118 94
By employment category ZIERER
Executive/Senior level TBRAER &R ERE 40 32
Middle level FRERERE 79 65
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
Health, safety and security

The health, safety and security of guests and employees at our hotels, clubs
and properties remain a priority through effective systems and policies. In
Philippine we continue to deal with issues such as terrorism and/or social
unrest. Each operation has their own health and safety committee meeting
regularly to review performance and implement improvements. Our
operations have systems or management procedures in place that comply
with local regulations as a minimum and where possible to supplement
with alignment or compliance to the internationally recognised
occupational health and safety management standard.

In 2020, we continued our efforts to enhance our security and safety
management and systems. Specifically, we conducted a gap analysis to
identify improvements in our operations towards meeting the international
benchmark on security management. We will be implementing the
findings of our analysis in 2020 and onwards.

We continued to build a safety-first culture and engage employees to keep
incidents as low as possible. During the year under review, we do not
aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that had
a significant impact on it relating to employment, health and safety, and
labour standards as mentioned in aspects B1, B2 and B4 of the Guide. We
successfully achieved our goal of zero fatalities.

RiE d2RERHRS

(RIEXRS TER &)

e R2RRE
HPVEBE R HIE REE - 5 - B R
MENEEREENRE  ZE2RREREE -
RIERE  RMEBRERHEIER SHLED
BEME SXGUEHRTAMERERELER
Begd  NWei RALETHREEE - LAN
EBHREEITAEHERNGIRREREFF
YHATERA T ERETER AR BEER
RE2EBIZTE -

RIE-ZF BFPEBERNRARTEERR
g o BRI - BIPPETEED T IABBIRFINE
BHERZEET AR A BRERIF L SOER
i BN T _FFRZREMOITER -

BMEEEYLE2F X TRAEKREES
EHRRERD c REEFE BT TMNEBEET
AN EF A KA DI IE R B R EES B -
B2 M B4EMEFTILENE - R REZE NS T .|
BREATE - BMEKNENTHTHEZ -

Annual Report & #§ 2019/20 63



BIFRIREEF R A]

International Entertainment Corporation

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Rk d2RERES

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
Development and training

Investing in our people is the most important investment we can make for
the sustainability of our business. The opportunity to learn and grow is also
a key motivating factor for employees, especially among younger staff. We
offer various management development and acceleration programmes to
enhance the skills and knowledge catering to the different job levels of our
employees. We will continue to seek out new ways to increase
effectiveness of our programmes.

The Group values the mutual growth and development with employees.
Therefore, the Group pushes forward career and staff development. All staff
is being encouraged to take advantage of the staff development programs,
which included provision of in-house and external training on
management/supervisory skills, technical skills, customer services skills etc.,
to consolidate and enhance employees’ knowledge and competitiveness.
During the year under review, 100% of employees were trained including
whom taking part as senior to general.

Employment Categories EEER
Senior =R
Middle-level PR
General —M%

Anti-child and forced labour

We are well aware that child labour and forced labour violate fundamental
human rights. The Group engage in nor tolerate any use of child or forced
labour and specifically restrict employ children below 18 years old. The
Human Resources Department ensure all employees are fulfilling the job
requirements underlying their respective positions. Apart from it, the
Group regularly review the employment practice and guidelines on staff
recruitment to ensure that it is in full compliance with the Employment
Ordinance and Republic Act No. 9231 and other regulations related to,
among other things, prevention of child labour and forced labour.
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2020 Average
training hours
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—E-%%F
25K FH
IR

789.3
1,797.7
1,949.8

REIR&EFZET

RMBEFEETRRAETERERNAE - AEE
TEBRANRAEMEILNREET - LHE
RSN TRE - ANERPERABEER
AWRELEBUNBEEIIEEER - BRILSN - &
SETHBRANBREETHNREFEENRES - BR
2 T &8 5T 1B F & 5 K 2% A1 B 5% (Republic Act) 55
OBTEUARBE(HFPBE)IEETREH ST
R E IR -



B IREEAR A E

International Entertainment Corporation

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OPERATING PRACTICES

The Group devotes its best effort to provide a privilege experience for its
customers. To this end, it commits to offering quality services to its
customers and meets their needs in order to retain its customers. The
Group takes a responsibility approach in its operation practices and takes
every opportunity to improve its services to strive for the best value for its
customers. This section would focus on supply chain management, anti-
corruption and product responsibility. The Group identified the following
material issues of operating practices, which are discussed as below.

Operating practices

Supply chain management

(M) Ensure the stability of out supply chain

Customer privacy and data

(i) Follow the compliance requirements of regulating body
Managing anti-corruption risk

() Observe the highest standards of ethical, personal and
professional conduct

Products and services quality
(M Take care of all complaints from our stakeholders
(i) Ensure all linen and amenities in a good condition

Supply chain management

Supplier relationships are an important part of our reputation and brand.
We seek to buy at competitive rates, but not at the expense of labour
standards, human rights, health impacts or the environment. We work
closely with our suppliers to ensure we meet our high quality and
comprehensive standards. We know our decisions can impact on our wider
communities, so we have included these supply chain initiatives under this
section.

We strive not to over-rely on a specific supplier so as to ensure the stability
of out supply chain. Choosing business partners, our procurement and
operations teams work with reputable suppliers who help us provide the
best quality products, with a consideration of our sustainability
specifications and aligning with our Supply Chain Code of Conduct. The
following table is an overview of data in relation to supply chain
management.

RiE d2RERHRS

R A

AEEBEMEEATPIEHEZER - JtmE -
AEBARSEPRHEEERS  WinERES
KABRBERE - AREREEEMNTHRRAR
Ehé EESERSRAERBUBERE, R
HREBE FHHINHEEERE  REB
NREMBE AEERRATKEEINERE
B YR N e

KB
HEEEE

() HEREEENREME
BEP LR NEIE

() BREEWEBNERER

() BIRSEENEE  BAREXRE
:T,

EmMRGEER
() HERERFDENABRSF
(i)  FERFTAKE RREHEN R I IREE

iy A
HEBRERERFINEERMENREZRD -
B UEABFHOERERE - ETEUET
S AE - REFELARBFE/RE - RMAH
HEAEZSFE  BRAMANTAEEZEMNTE -
BFRAELORAREREALRERTEE - it
BRI A % F S AH B AR -

BPFETSBNERBE EHER - BRI ERE
MIREM - @EBEXBBHETTE  RAINERERE
LEGREERFNEEEGE  ABRMAREH
BEER IEBIRMOAFERRREBLN
BRMNEEET AT TRABARAHEET
BEBEER
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

REEG (2)

Supply chain management (Continued) HEHEEE ()

Number of suppliers in terms of 2020 2019
geographical location BihEE oM HERER —E-EHF —E—NE
The Philippines JEEE 401 534
Europe BOM 4 10
Hong Kong B8 5 10
USA e 5 4
China s 1 4
Other regions H b [@ 6 7
Total Suppliers with Purchase/Payments iRt EE AR 422 569

The supply chains mainly cover two general categories: (i) office supply
chains; and (i) hotel supply chains. At the office level, supply chains cover
procurement for headquarter office and are mainly focused on routine
office items such as stationery, toner and paper. At the hotel segment,
most items are procured for running a hotel and that cover a wide variety
items including beverage, food, linens and cleaning supplies etc. The
Group is committed to operating in an ethical and safe environment and
employ sound supply chain practices to ensure that the performance
remains sustainable. Its procurement process encourages a high level of
objectivity and impartiality in supplier selection. Its suppliers are required
to provide quality goods and services that meet our expectations. The
Group also ensures that suppliers will provide efficient after-sales services
prior to purchasing any products from them.

Additionally, all suppliers are required to comply with relevant legislation
when supplying goods and services to the Group. The Group conducts
annual evaluations of its suppliers to ensure that quality is maintained,
goods and services have actually been provided and that prices paid for
such goods and services remain competitive. The Group also strongly
encourages the purchase unit to take note of the local Government's
policy on recommended green product specifications in their product
offerings and design.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Customer privacy and data

The Group protects customer data privacy and complies with all relevant
laws and regulations to safeguard the data security of our customers, such
as storing the commercial documents by following government law in
Philippine. We pay extra attention to customer data management and no
substantiated complaint regarding leakage of customer privacy or loss of
customer data were reported during the year. A clear customer data
privacy policy has been formulated to instruct our employees on managing
the data which they have access to. Data privacy training is available for
employees in the orientation and refresher programme.

The Group has appointed its new data protection officer, Ms. Twinkle
Lacsamana who will act as the company's point person with regards to
data privacy compliance. In relation to the Data Privacy Act (‘DPA") of 2012,
she also acts as the liaison officer between the company and the National
Privacy Commission (“NPC"), the regulating body of the DPA. Currently, the
Group is in the process of completing the compliance requirements of the
NPC and have already executed security measures required by the law
including the issuance of privacy policies and conducting awareness
campaigns and training sessions.

Managing anti-corruption risk

The Group maintains the highest standards of openness, uprightness and
accountability and all our employees are expected to observe the highest
standards of ethical, personal and professional conduct. We do not tolerate
corruption, bribery, extortion, money laundering and other fraudulent
activities in connection with any of our business operations. We adopted
on corruption prevention or anti-corruption enable employees to exercise
judgment on corruption prevention and apply practice on anti-corruption
in their daily work by aiming to encourage whistle-blowing. This whistle-
blowing policy presents examples of misconduct to which the whistle-
blowing policy applies, sets out required proof on reported misconduct,
sets out confidential procedures to protect the identity of and the
correspondence with the whistle-blower, presents outcomes of making
false or undue allegations, sets out reporting channels and investigation
procedures.

The Group's policies stated that employees are prohibited, with only
limited exceptions, from receiving tips and gifts from hotel customers,
colleagues or suppliers. All gifts and favours, regardless of value, must be
reported to the individual supervisor. Any matters of genuine concern are
to be thoroughly investigated and actions will be taken accordingly.
Throughout the financial year ended 30 June 2020, the Group has not
received any non-compliance matters in this aspect.

RiE d2RERHRS
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Products and services quality

We are committed to delivering superior customer services and to handle
queries from customers in a timely and efficient manner. In order to
enhance the hotel’s products and services on a continuous basis,
customers are encouraged to provide feedback on their experience, and
the Group has established procedures for handling customers’ queries and
complaints. Well trained representatives are always ready to promptly
respond to enquiries, requests and complaints. All cases will be examined
thoroughly and passed to the relevant department for developing
resolutions and enhancement.

The hotel takes care of all complaints from our stakeholders as we believe
our quality of service is first priority. Obtaining the guest preferences at
each contact with the guests, updating guest profile in the hotel’s Opera
Property Management System for requests and comments that have been
received either directly from the guests or staffs of the other departments
in order to mark sure all guest preference are met, monitoring the follow-
up progress in a timely manner to ensure all requests are properly handled,
and handing all complaints in a courteous, professional, efficient way with
a positive attitude are the actions that the hotel agreed to commit for the
service quality.

Major issues for the year are air-conditioners problem, limited TB channels,
water interruption, and implementation of additional security measures,
and defective tools such as telephone, safety deposit box and airport pick-
up arrangements.

Service Quality review during
the year FARBEE =S

BERER (AMEZE)
R B 2 P ]

Complaints received (in cases)
Average number of minutes to solve
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International Entertainment Corporation

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group recognises the importance of local communities to the
continued success and growth of our business. Apart from the donation to
charity organisation by the Group from time to time, employees are all
delighted to devote their time and efforts to give a helping hand to the
community. They participate and contribute to the community in any form
voluntarily including donation, volunteer work in charity organisations.
During the financial year ended 30 June 2020, the Group supported and
participated in different community activities covering poverty alleviation
and community caring to provide support to the underprivileged.

Poverty alleviation

The Group has been devoting much effort to poverty alleviation. We
sponsored in different charity, such as the Room to Read Programme,
aiming to raise charity funding for those children who are lack of assistance
on studies and family care. We have donated a total of Peso 188,146 raising
through various donation drive activities such as Bingo event and
Calamodine “Drink of the Month”, which was a global organization
transforming the lines of millions of children in low-income countries
through educating literacy and gender equality.
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IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT
CORPORATION

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of International
Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 78 to 234, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in
the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 30 June 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

70 Annual Report 4% 2019/20

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t™ Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

3
FaEEP 11158
Tk ZF2558

HERREBRARFIMRR

(RESHEITMA L ERAA])

REER

BB EZE 78 E 234 AFE A RABIFR AR 8%
BRAR(TERAR]) REMBAR (S E5E])
MEEMBEHE WU BHRREER -2 _FF
NAZTEZGEAMBRAREBEZZALFE
M emiiak FERaZ2PRLEA RS
MER  ERSEMBRERNE  BEREXES
R -

BARS  BRARE T REBER2ER] —6
RBEEECEETEIN RAMBRRERBE
BRBIMAE ([FAETMAE ) BMEN(ER
MBREEADEEMPBRRT ERER-
Z_TFENAZTHEZEEUBRR - RBEZ
HEFREZEAMBRARGERERE X
REEE(ATMEIDBREERZERE



B IREEAR A E

International Entertainment Corporation

Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries constituting the
discontinued operation

As disclosed in Note 13 and Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group completed the disposal of entire equity interest in
Newworth Ventures Limited and its subsidiaries (together as the “Disposal
Group”) on 29 May 2020, the date on which the Disposal Group ceased to
be subsidiaries of the Group. The principal activities of the Disposal Group
were operation of a football club with related and ancillary activities in the
United Kingdom, which represented a major line of business of the Group
and was therefore presented as a discontinued operation in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The loss from
discontinued operation for the period of approximately HK$198,824,000
and the gain arising from the disposal of the Disposal Group of
approximately HK$127,962,000 was presented under the caption
"Discontinued Operation” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Subsequent to the disposal, five subsidiaries of the Disposal Group (the
“Five Disposed Subsidiaries”) in the United Kingdom were put into
administration under the law of the United Kingdom. Administrators (the
"Administrators”) were appointed on the same date and have taken control
of the Five Disposed Subsidiaries since then. The directors of the Company
were denied by the Administrators from accessing the relevant financial
and other information of the Five Disposed Subsidiaries and therefore were
unable to provide us with sufficient information and documentary
evidence for our audit. As a result, we were unable to perform audit
procedures that we considered necessary and determine whether any
adjustments might be necessary in respect of (i) the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities of the Disposal Group as at date of disposal as set out
in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements; and (i) the income and
expenses of the discontinued operation for the period from 1 July 2019 to
the date of disposal as set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements. Any adjustments in respect of the above amounts found
necessary would have a consequential effect on (i) the loss from the
discontinued operation for the period; (ii) the gain on disposal of the
Disposal Group; and (iii) the related disclosures of (i) and (ii) in these
consolidated financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. As described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section above,
we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about the
Disposal Group. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not
the other information is materially misstated with respect to this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the “Basis
for Qualified Opinion” section, we have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Impairment assessment of the non-current assets

We identified the impairment assessment in relation to the non-current
assets located in the Republic of the Philippines (the “Philippines”) that
allocated to the cash generating unit of hotel operations (the “Hotel CGU")
as a key audit matter because the Group’s hotel segment had incurred
losses for the year ended 30 June 2020 and period ended 30 June 2019.
The Group has gross carrying amount of property, plant and equipment of
HK$243,733,000 and right-of-use assets of HK$18,646,000 respectively
relating to the Hotel CGU, which are significant operating assets of the
Group.
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At the end of each reporting period, the management assesses if there are
any indicators of potential impairment of the assets relating to the Hotel
CGU. If any impairment indicator exists, the management assesses the
recoverable amount of the Hotel CGU with reference to the valuation
prepared by an independent valuer not connected to the Group (the
“Valuer”) by income capitalisation approach. As disclosed in Note 15 and
Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements, the management has
concluded that the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
amounted to HKS$8,709,000 and right-of-use assets amounted to
HK$666,000 are required to be impaired respectively.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment of
the Hotel CGU included:

Discussing the impairment indicators of the Hotel CGU with the
management and inspecting the operating results and cash flow
forecast of the Group's hotel segment;

Assessing the valuation methodology;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the Valuer
and obtaining an understanding of the Valuer's scope of work and
their terms of engagement; and

Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions adopted in the
valuation, such as the discount rate, capitalisation rate, average
occupancy rate and average daily room rate, by comparing them
with the budget approved by the management, available market
data for comparable properties and the historical operating
performances of the Group’s hotel segment.

Fair value measurement of investment properties

We have identified the fair value measurement of investment properties
located in the Philippines as a key audit matter because the Group's rental
income generated from the investment properties dropped by 39% during
the year. The actual rental income earned for the current year showed a
significant variance from the budgeted rental income estimated by the
management in 2019 for the purpose of deriving the fair value of
investment properties in 2019.
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As disclosed in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements,
management estimated the fair value of investment properties at
approximately HK$1,308 million (2019: HK$1,510 million) as at 30 June
2020, with a fair value loss of approximately HK$262 million recognised in
the profit or loss for the year (2019: fair value loss of HK$89 million).

Independent external valuations were obtained in respect of the
investment properties in order to support the management'’s estimation of
fair value. The valuation is dependent on certain key assumptions that
require significant management judgements including rental income from
future lease period and capitalisation rate in light of the current market
condition.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s fair value measurement of
investment properties included:

Conducting in-depth discussions with management about the cash
flow projections used in the income approach calculation and
assessing the appropriateness of the significant assumptions and
critical judgement areas which affect the income approach
calculation;

Assessing the valuation methodology;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the Valuer
and obtaining an understanding of the Valuer's scope of work and
their terms of engagement; and

Challenging the reasonableness of the key assumptions, such as
discount rate and capitalisation rate based on our knowledge of the
business and the industry, in particular those relating to the cash
flow projection within the lease term used by the income approach
for the fair value measurement.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group'’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

76

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguard applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Wai Man
Practising Certificate number P05309

Hong Kong, 23 September 2020
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SLEEHEWER

For theyear ended 30 June 2020
HE—T —TF NA=1THIFFE

Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BZE HZE
—ECEH —ET-NF
~NBA=1H NAZ=Z1H
LHEE 1EHAR
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
KtaF F#ET FATT
(Re-presented)
(F&&E7))
Continuing operations HEREEK
Revenue A 5(b) 226,965 375,982
Cost of sales SHE A (78,431) (105,962)
Gross profit EH 148,534 270,020
Other income H YA 6 16,216 26,507
Other losses, net H i858 7 (16,832) (9,682)
Change in fair value of financial assets ?ﬁ@ﬁ@?ﬂ\%éZ@Eﬂﬁf@
at fair value through profit or loss N EEE) 21 29,066 (51,770)
Change in fair value of financial liabilities BAFEFABERECCREBE
at fair value through profit or loss N EEE) 32 13,173 -
Change in fair value of investment properties ¥ & 2N T EEE) 16 (262,125) (89,396)
Impairment loss of property, W - B RS ERERE
plant and equipment 15 (8,709) -
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets ERREEERERE 20 (666) -
Share of loss of associates DIGEEE R FIEE 19 (126)
Selling and marketing expenses SHE RS ER X (3,043) (7,773)
General and administrative expenses —MRITBAX (123,889) (188,751)
Finance costs pvs-di 8 (32,534) (21,915)
Loss before taxation BT Al Es 18 9 (240,935) (72,760)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisfise, () 1 6,465 (14,240)
Loss for the year/period from continuing FR/EHRNRERFECEER
operations 2B (234,470) (87,000)
Discontinued operation [EY - cd-—F 3
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net of tax HENB AR - &MBREIE 33 127,962
Gain on bargain purchase EAEL GG - 116,790
Loss for the period HnEE 13 (198,824) (123,083)
Loss for the period from discontinued HINIR B B AR LA & T
operation 2 518 (70,862) (6,293)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEHRER

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—E-FFA=1THIFE

Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BZE HZE
—ECEH —E-NF
NA=1+H ~NA=1+H
LEFE 1-EAfE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
(Re-presented)
(K&&E7))
Loss for the year/period F /HREIE (305,332) (93,293)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that BreEHMoEEER L
will not be reclassified to profit or loss: Hiemss (&) -
— Remeasurement of defined benefit — B ERATEMNEME
obligations 442 (1,344)
— Exchange differences arising on —HBE A2 EBESES Y
translation of presentation currency PE X =% 36,457 27,621
Other comprehensive loss that may be ERgvgEEFTOERERZ
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: H iR A EE
— Exchange differences arising on translation — #E /N EEB SRR ELE
of financial statements of ZEH E5E
foreign operations (11,613) (8,458)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal HENBRRERENELFH
of subsidiaries 19,875 -
Total comprehensive loss for the year/period £ /HAN & [ 518 4 58 (260,171) (75474)
(Loss)/profit for the year/period attributable to: 51|53 I8 fE {5 F A, i R
(E518), /&7 :
Owners of the Company RABHEEA
— from continuing operations — REC R (234,470) (87,000)
— from discontinued operation — BRI EER (45,094) 9,473
(279,564) (77,527)
Non-controlling interests FEfE R T
— from continuing operations — B - -
— from discontinued operation — BRI EER (25,768) (15,766)
(25,768) (15,766)
(305,332) (93,293)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SLEEHEWER

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BZE HZE
—ECEH —E-NF
ANA=t+H ~NAZ=Z+H
LHEE 1EHARE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
KtaF FExT FATT
(Re-presented)
(F&&E7))
Total comprehensive loss for the year/period ~ FE(R4E /BRI EESEL258
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company — ARREBA (234,787) (59,128)
— Non-controlling interests — IR R (25,384) (16,346)
(260,171) (75,474)
HK Cents HK Cents
AL AL
(Re-presented)
(KeE5)
(Loss)/profit per share attributable to RNRIER AEE TR
owners of the Company (E518), /&7 14
Basic BN
— from continuing operations — RBEEEER (17.13) (6.35)
— from discontinued operation — BRI EET (3.29) 0.69
(20.42) (5.66)
Diluted #e
— from continuing operations — BB E (17.13) (6.35)
— from discontinued operation — BRI EER (3.29) 0.69
(20.42) (5.66)
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e MR R

At 30 June 2020

R-FE=FFNA=+H

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
ANB=+H ~NA=+A
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HfaF T FHIT
ASSETS 'E
Non-current assets EMBNEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMEE 15 280,786 619,956
Investment properties EYE 16 1,308,000 1,510,000
Intangible assets mEEE 17 - 49,556
Loan receivable EWE R 18 75,503 51,575
Interest in associates /N o 19 55,228 -
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 20 33,787 -
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HaEUEIE « He &
TERTRIE 23 14,329 19,644
1,767,633 2,250,731
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 1,840 2,852
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRZ
profit or loss SREE 21 93,441 191,360
Trade receivables JE U BR T8 22 7,053 26,450
Contract assets BHEE 24 4,128 934
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HiEWRIE  EE Kk
FafTRIE 23 38,231 82,728
Amounts due from associates FEWLSE & R A IR 3,173 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEGFERRS 36 623,170 242317
771,036 546,641
Total assets BEME 2,538,669 2,797,372
Current liabilities mENBE
Trade payables FETBEIR 25 3,544 20,532
Other payables and accrued charges EMEN I N ETE R 25 61,999 121,572
Contract liabilities AREE 24 972 11,343
Bank borrowings |ITEE 31 19,450 4,765
Lease liabilities HEAaR 20 2,774 -
88,739 158,212
Net current assets mENEEFAE 682,297 388,429
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B BERR R

At 30 June 2020
RE-EFE-FFNA=+H

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

—E-EHF —E-NF
~NA=1H NA=TH
Notes HKS$’000 HKS'000
et FET FET
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 26 179,889 184,786
Other liabilities Hiafk 4,661 6,386
Lease liabilities HEaE 20 32,807 -
Promissory note A EIE 30 345,915 342,829
Bank borrowings HITEE 31 53,486 71,473
Convertible bond Al ES 32 44,692 -
661,450 605,474
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,788,480 2,033,686
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ZNA R A A IR
Share capital & A 28 1,369,157 1,369,157
Share premium and reserves R 2 (B Ko i 1 419,323 654,110
1,788,480 2,023,267
Non-controlling interests JEIRRRERS 38 - 10,419
TOTAL EQUITY S 1,788,480 2,033,686

The financial statements on pages 78 to 234 were approved by the Board N FE78E M B2 BREXCNR _E-_FF N

of Directors on 23 September 2020 and were signed on its behalf by: AZ+=-—HEESeE YATINESRESE
E
Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley Mr. Ho Wong Meng
HeEE L Ho Wong Meng 5t 4%
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF 2
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International Entertainment Corporation

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

%é#&m%iﬁ%

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RORREARL
Share-based Non-
Share Share Merger Other Exchange  compensation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserves reserves reserve profits Total interests equity
WRfAER
e B %E CLit1 ] Efbfite EifiE ZBERE RERA 48 FERER EnEg
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
Tén TR T i Th Thi Thn TEn T Thr
(notea) (noteb) (notec)
(hita) (o) (itc)

31 March 2018 R-E-N\E=ZA=+-H 1369157 170,289 5302 (112683) (301,801) 5433 898,978 208239 = 2,082,395
Loss for the period BrER - - - - - - (77520) (17520 (15,766) (93293)
Remeasurement of defined benefit ENMtERT

obligations BHER - - - - - - (1344) (1344) - (1344)
Eichange differences arising on translation B AZ I EREEL 2

of presentation currency BHEE - - - - 76 - - 760 - 27601
Bichange differences arising on translation 8 AGSN ERETRERE

offinancial statements of foreign EEVERER

operations - - - - (7878) - - (7878) (580) (8458)
Total comprehensive loss for the period B2 EE RS - - - - 19743 - (78871) (59,128) (16,346) (75474)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBLR - - - - - - - - 26765 26,765
At30June 2019 RZF-NERA=TA 1369157 170,289 53022 (112683) (282,058) 5433 820,107 2023267 10419 2033686
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - (279,564) (279,564) (25,768) (305,332)
Remeasurement of defined benef EMEATRENER

obligations - - - - - - 442 442 - 442
Bichange diferences arsing on translation 28 AZFIEBBEL 2

of presentation currency EXEH - - - - 36,457 - - 36,457 - 36,457
Eichange diferences arsing on translation  #8 BESNE BB BHRE

of financial statements of foreign EEERER

operations - - - - (11,997) - - (11,997) 384 (11,613)
Release of exchange reserve upon REEMBAREER

disposalof subsidiaries (note 33 B LR (HE3) - - - - 19875 - - 19,875 - 19875
Total comprehensive loss for theyear AL ABIEAE - - - - 44335 - (279122)  (234,787) (25384)  (260,171)
Disposal of subsiclaries (note 33) HENBAR(MH33) = = = = = = = = 14,965 14,965
430 June 200 RZF-ZERA=TH 1,369,157 170,289 53022 (112683)  (237723) 5433 540,985 1,788,480 - 1788480

AEEAHHEBRABHRBREARAR (ERMHE
ARRBAD ) Z AR AR B EARERESE
B EAMMBITRA 2 EEMERZZMH o AIIEZITR
BERARERBE_ZTZNF-_A=1T—BILFE
HE o

(a) Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the share capital (a)
and share premium of Cyber On-Air Multimedia Limited whose shares were
exchanged for the Company’s shares and the nominal amount of share capital
issued by the Company pursuant to the group reorganisation. Cyber On-Air
Multimedia Limited was disposed of during the year ended 31 March 2008.

HEHERNRE_TTN\F=A=+—BK_%
—tEE=A=t-HLFESRRERHFNEREZ

(b) The other reserves represent net effect of discount on acquisition of subsidiaries (b)
and premium on acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries from a subsidiary

of the then intermediate parent arising during the year ended 31 March 2008 and
31 March 2017 respectively.

Share-based compensation reserve comprises the value of the unexercised share
option granted by the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note 3.19.

— KR A AU P R B A 2 M R R I E
AESMEREL REFTE -

VAR AR R 208 2 1 (B R 8 B 1R AR IR M S 3.1 9 L AR D
RERNFIRNEHBRBRZARBTREZHEAR
TR EE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GeRERER

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
—EC-BE —T-hNF
AA=1+H SNA=1H
LFE 1EHARE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Re-presented)
(L =E5))
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETER
Loss before taxation B 7% Al &5 18
From continuing operations B ET (240,935) (72,760)
From discontinued operation BRI EER (71,180) (11,899
Adjustments for: BTHIEE EHFEE -
Interest income LB A (6,593) (7,631)
Interest expenses FMBEFHX 34,729 21915
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts for JEW AR TE I B At E M SR IE 2
trade and other receivables, net RERBE TR 1,187 879
Written-off of other receivables il 85 L At JE L R IE 2,670 -
Change in fair value of financial assets BAFEFAEBRZEREE
at fair value through profit or loss NEEZY (29,066) 51,770
Change in fair value of financial liabilities RAFESFABRZZEHAR
at fair value through profit or loss NEEZY (13,173) -
Change in fair value of investment properties KEYMENTEEE) 262,125 89,396
Impairment loss of property, plant and M - WERFEREREE
equipment 8,709 -
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets FRAREEERERBE 666 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y - BB R REITE 52,638 54,371
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRBEEENE 5,445 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWME - BB REE 2 WS
equipment (45) -
Loss on written-off of property, plant and MIEME - BERREHBE
equipment 430 2,179
Amortisation of intangible assets A EHH 52,589 28,583
Impairment of intangible assets B EAERE - 3,954
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HERTEE 2K (891) (8,828)
Waive of other payable e H MR FUR - (1,256)
Release of provision for additional transfer fee fERRFEINE B B (1,767) (3,207)
Share of loss of associates SGEEE A RBE 126 -
Gain on bargain purchase of subsidiaries B A Rl BRE R - (116,790)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWNB ARz (127,962) -
Net foreign exchange loss PE H S8 55 13,759 9,515
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B IREEAR A E

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEHERER

For the year ended 30 June 2020

#z-F-F

—_= =

FENA=THIEFE

Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Bz H=E
—EC-BF —T-hNF
AA=1+H NA=1+H
IEFE 1-EAfE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
(Re-presented)
(&E5)
Operating cash flows before movements in Rt EBEE G EF 2L
working capital RenE (56,539) 40,191
Increase in inventories FEE (296) (536)
Decrease in trade receivables FEU R TE R 14,217 6,206
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables, HA IR ~ e RIEFTFRIE
deposits and prepayments L, (3G n) 5,599 (29,605)
Decrease in trade payables FERTERIE R (4,105) (1,253)
Increase in other payables and accrued charges Hfth FEAS FIE N FE R E R G N 52,009 22,048
Cash generated from operations RELEESH 2 RS 10,885 37,051
Income taxes paid EARIZIECE = -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REKE TS
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEFEE 10,885 37,051
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Interest received BUF B 4,076 5411
Additions to property, plant and equipment NEVE - BENRE (12,276) (60,047)
Proceeds received on disposal of property, HEDME  BMEMBREZ
plant and equipment BT RIE 209 295
Increase in deposits for property, M - BEMEEESEMN
plant and equipment (21,621) (19,644)
Purchase of investment properties BEREME (22,229) (53,464)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEERT B A A - (183,114
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AT 172,208 -
Proceeds from sale of players’ registration HEIR B M ATE5IE 36,853 18416
Payment for purchase of players’ registration BAE Mz (101,691) (23,729)
Purchase of unlisted fund BAFLTES - (242,350)
Proceeds received on disposal of unlisted fund REFLEMES 2B WMEHRIE 126,979 -
Increase in loan receivable PR E FE N (22,551) -
Amounts advance to associates SEENL A=WNSIE Q] (3,173) -
Repayment of capital loan from subsidiaries BREOHEZWEATZ
disposed of BEARER 243,737 -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING  SREB (AR REFBSH 2R & FHE
ACTIVITIES 400,521 (558,226)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GeRERER

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE H=
—ECEH —E-hEF
ANA=1H ~NA=1H
LFE 1-EAfE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
(Re-presented)
(KeE5)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 7l 5E B
Interest paid [=ANELES (13,068) (15671)
Increase in bank borrowings RITEEL N - 76,238
Increase in other borrowings Hitnfg &350 95,000 -
Repayment of bank borrowings RITIEEZEX (4,862) -
Repayment of other borrowings Hifg B2 B (95,000) -
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities ~ THE & EAS 7B (9,326) -
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM FINANCING (FAR),TREREE8 =

ACTIVITIES HEEE (27,256) 60,567
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH BERBESZEWEM  (RD)

EQUIVALENTS FE 384,150 (460,608)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ERESEsHE (3,297) 6,357
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING RE/HBAzRERBSESEY

OF YEAR/PERIOD 242,317 696,568
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END RE/HERCEESRRLEEN

OF YEAR/PERIOD

represented by bank balances and cash MAIRTIT8E1FE B3R © 57~ 623,170 242317
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION
General

International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). As of the date of this report, Brighten Path Limited
(“Brighten Path”) and Head and Shoulders Direct Investment Limited
("Head and Shoulders”) are the Company's immediate and ultimate
parent respectively. Head and Shoulders is wholly and beneficially
owned by Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley, executive Director. The
registered office of the Company is located at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong is Units 2109-10, 21st Floor, Wing On House, No. 71 Des Voeux
Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group were
principally involved in hotel operations, leasing of properties
equipped with entertainment equipment at the hotel complex of
the Group in Metro Manila in the Philippines (the "Hotel Business”
and “Leasing Business”), live poker events (the “ Live Events Business”)
in Macau and operation of a football club with related and ancillary
activities (the “Football Club Business”) in the United Kingdom (the
“UK"). During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Football Club
Business were disposed of and presented as a discontinued
operation (note 13). The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set
outin note 37.

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

—REIE
BIRREBR AR ([AAF]) ARHAEHS
AR BRAG - ARMDREBBER
SFBRAR ([BRAT]) LW - RAHRER
H - Brighten Path Limited ([ Brighten Path]) &
Head and Shoulders Direct Investment Limited
([Head and Shoulders]) 7 Rl B AR B 2 E#
SR A R &4 52 5] ° Head and Shoulders f
WITESEAETTI2EREEES - A2
7] 5 it i = & 2 Hb 4k A& Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° KA R BB X B &
B Ut AR B EEHETR 71 kLR R
RE21#2109-10F °

KRB EREZER ARG - AEBFEEKA
RIEREFENHGR 2 AEBBEELREE
BALEBEXEBAR DR ERESE
mE(DEEES | R HBER] - HEM
EIRIS R R ([IRISEE ) KRR
B ([ ) e B8 — R B IR L 30 S 5H RS
MREER ([RIKELITER]) - BHEZT
ZEFXNAZTHLTFE  BRHRELMBES
KEHET 2 AERIEELEB (KT
13) o BB RAIZ EBEEHHITEI7 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—E_TFNA=THILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

July 2019
HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIO)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income

Tax Treatments
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12and ~ 2015-2017 Cycle
HKAS 23

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16, HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 and
Amendments to HKAS 28 have been summarised in below.
The other new or amended HKFRSs that are effective from 1
July 2019 did not have any significant impact on the Group’s
accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
July 2019 (Continued)
(i)  Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of
the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability,
and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability
into a principal portion and an interest portion and
presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the
right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially
measured on a present value basis. The measurement
includes non-cancellable lease payments and also
includes payments to be made in optional periods if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly
different from the lessee accounting for leases that are
classified as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

2. BEMEBREHREED (THFEMHE

WREER) (®)
RNFE]RIETEBMBERESE
Al —B=ZZE-hAFtA—HBEXE
M ()

(a)

(i)

RAEEBUBEHREERE165
[HE | z2&
BRMBREENE 16 MK E
AEFENE 7R IEE | &8
B SIAE—RBASHE
BER - WHREARBARAER
HEg @A cHEEREER
BE - RIFEREEREKEERSE
EAERI® - EBME - REF
B EREERE 1657 - AHA
AERERREE (R TEAE
EREEHREEE) RHERE
(RAEBEEEHEENT) -
Eit - AFEARHEREREEE
FEMEEAENS  XHHEE
BEZREEFRDE/ANEID
RNBE D - MRBRERERA
25 piHh - EREEEMEE
BEVTRBELLETE - 5T 8
BRETAABERENK - T8%E
WAFAAB A EITREERE
EERES TR ERZILEE
ZIERT - R E AR AE
HZ 3R - iE R R TR SRR
EEBGFERIZE 175 (LR £
A BEENBAKEHE Z &
MAHESHREEEARER -

RN R EEAE - T80
BRI 6 RATHRES
BHRRE 7R HBAGHE
BT o Flt - AR
BEAFAMEREARAR
£ 3 B HEMAREE T TR
ZEHEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—E_TFNA=THILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
July 2019 (Continued)

2.

20

(i)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases
(Continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 retrospectively from 1
July 2019, but has not restated comparatives for the
2019 reporting period, as permitted under the specific
transitional provisions in the standard. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the
new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the
opening of consolidated statement of financial position
as of 1 July 2019,

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as “operating leases” under the principles of
HKAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate as of 1 July 2019.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

July 2019 (Continued)
(i)  Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases
(Continued)

The following reconciliation explains how the operating
lease commitments disclosed applying HKAS 17 at the
end of 30 June 2019 could be reconciled to the lease
liabilities at the date of initial application recognised in
the statement of financial position as at 1 July 2019:

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

RMBEEMHREGERN (FEMT
WmEZER) (®)
(a) BRANHE] REFTEBMBREE
Al —B=ZE—-hEtHA—RBEXE
M (E)
(i) HRANEBHBREERE16%
IE:-d04 7 1¢ )
AT S EEMRA — B — NENA
S+ RGREERS S e L
$17 B 2 AT E AL
BR-—E—NE+A—BZHE
R EFTRERR ERERB Y

2.

HEBBEETYHE
HK$'000
FH&T
Operating lease commitments disclosed as RZE-NFERA=THRRRLS
at 30 June 2019 (note) MREAIE (K1) 146,470
Less: short-term leases for which lease terms B AERN —E-_EFERA=1THRK
ended within 30 June 2020 and recognised ERIWNEHERRAAL 2
on a straight-line basis as expenses FEAE (642)
Add: lease included in extension option which ~ Jll : KEBRAESESERITEZ
the Group considers reasonably certain EREEEMBEEE
to exercise 60,498
Less: future interest expenses W RRF B (140,664)
Total lease liabilities recognised as at 1 July 2019 RZZT—NF+ H—BH¥ER
ZHERBRRE 65,662
Of which are: B A
Current lease liabilities mEHEEE 2,649
Non-current lease liabilities EnBHEAE 63,013
65,662
Weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing 7 & /% & F3 B B 2 iNkE 15
rate at the date of initial application AFE A LG E B ROR=R 7.17%

Note: The operating lease commitments has included the
operating lease commitments for the Group’s operations in
Hong Kong and the Philippines of HK$46,459,000 and the
Group's operation in the UK of HK$100,011,000 based on
the latest rental as at 30 June 2019, which was subject to

review every five years.

Miet - BER=ZT—AFEA=FTHZ
SN E (ASRFRFT—X) -
LEHERERREAEEEAR
FEEEB 2R EHEAE
46,459,000/ 70 * A R AR EE I
Bl X% o &egilagx
100,011,000 7T °

=
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—E_TFNA=THILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
July 2019 (Continued)

(i)  Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases
(Continued)

The associated right-of-use assets were measured at the
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to that lease recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019. There
were no onerous lease contracts that would have
required an adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application.

2. BEMEBBEHREED ((HFEMFHE
WEER) (®)
(a) FREMFERETEBMERESE
Al—B=ZZE-hAFtA—HEXE
()

(i)

RAEEBUBEHREER F165
[HE | 2Z& (&)
HREREEEREERESE
THTE  WRER-FT-NF
NAZ=ZTB&EEUBARR KT
REER 2 BN R
ENRERIELHE - RERE
RBEH  SEEMAHEAER
EELARZBEREHEESRL -

HK$'000
FHET
Leasehold land HELH 42,547
Properties L 23,115
Total right-of-use assets EREEERE 65,662

The change in accounting policy affected the following
items in the consolidated statement of financial position
as of 1 July 2019:

Right-of-use assets — increase by
Lease liabilities — increase by

EREEE — &M

EHBRESHYEUTR T
—NE+A—B2EABBHRR
£MZIEA :

HK$'000
TAT

65,602
(65,662)
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e MR

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
July 2019 (Continued)

(i)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases
(Continued)

Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has
used the following practical expedients permitted by
the standard:

—  the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics

— reliance on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous

— the accounting for operating leases with a
remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at
1 July 2019 as short-term leases

—  the exclusion of initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date
of initial application

—  the use of hindsight in determining the lease
term where the contract contains options to
extend or terminate the lease, and

—  to measure the right-of-use asset at an amount
equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognised in the
statement of financial position immediately
before the date of transition to HKFRSs.

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

2. BEMEBREHREED (THFEMHE

WREER) (®)
RNFE]RIETEBMBERESE
Al —B=ZZE-hAFtA—HBEXE
M ()

(a)

(i)

RAEEBUBEHREERE165
[HE | 2Z& (&)
EEBZATRE%
RERERE BN ERE LT
16575 - NEBOEM N N EZ
ERIRFFZ AITHEEEIA

— HWABAERMAMEHZE
BERARAE—BRE

— KRAENRHERTEE
BMEDL 2 FHE

— BR-ZT-hF+tA—H
HTHEHMIRI2EA 2K
EHEARIBEHHEE

— REXREABHAEER
B ER MR V) n B R K
Z

— HEHBESERAKILE
EZEER ARFRE
M R

— RZRHERGEFESHIE
EREEE  WiREER
BEERBY B REER
B 53 A B 155K 00 2% B HE R
HERMZ EMFENRE
AHEHENARESRIEHHE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—E_TFNA=THILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
July 2019 (Continued)

2.

924

(i)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases
(Continued)

Practical expedients applied (Continued)

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a
contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial
application. Instead, for contracts entered into before
the transition date the Group relied on its assessment
made applying HKAS 17 and IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease.

The Group leases various land, offices, staff quarters and
football stadium. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods of 2 to 99 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

From 1 July 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which
the leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life
and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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RME BB SREED ((HFEMBE
WEER) (®)

R RIETT BRI BREE
A—BEZZE-hEFtA-HEE
(&)

(i)

RAEEBUBEHREER F165
[HE | 2Z& (&)
EEBZATREDZ%(B)
AEENDEETGEHNFGEE
HARBERERBEHREENHE
SHE - MMz - sLRNBER
HIRRI L 2 &M E - AEER
BHERBEGTEMNE 175K
BERMBREREZREF 45
[EELHERBREEFhZ
A -

AEBREET LM  BRE -
BIFERREHEG HEALB
B 25 99F 2 EFEBRET L °
AEEFURE R EEER - T
SEBETEMER G - HEH
BT R - EHEEE
TMSREEFERR -

BE-E-NFtHA—H#E HE
ERREREEE INHEE
EAMHEASEER 2 B ERERE
BE - ZHEMNFTRABEERE
A Z B DR » BB
MEAMEEORR - R HIES
HRABESREIRTEEHAE -
EREEENEREREEZA
EREREERME 2BREN
g



International Entertainment Corporation

B IREEAR A E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
July 2019 (Continued)

(i)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases
(Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

—  fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value in a similar economic environment with
similar terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

—  the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability

— any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

— any initial direct costs, and

—  restoration costs

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line

basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

2. BEMEBREHREED (THFEMHE

WREER) (®)
RNFE]RIETEBMBERESE
Al —B=ZZE-hAFtA—HBEXE
M ()

(a)

(i)

RAEEBUBEHREERE165
[HE | 2Z& (&)
HEEAZEERRABENIER
BEEEGFE - HEREBEAT
MEMFKZFHRE

— BEENR(BREDEEN
) OREMEREEEE

HEMRERBEFRRS ZH=X
BEIR - MEZEEZME - AlfE
RAEAZREERME - A&
HARRBLEEIRE T AL
R RS AR RUEE